
1503 N. IMPERIAL AVE., SUITE 104 

EL CENTRO, CA  92243-2875 

PHONE: (760) 592-4494  

FAX: (760) 592-4410 

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE AGENDA 

ZOOM MEETING ONLY 

Wednesday, March 9, 2022 

10:30 A.M.  
CHAIR:   NICK WELLS  VICE CHAIR:  MIGUEL FIGUEROA 

Individuals wishing accessibility accommodations at this meeting, under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), may request 

such accommodations to aid hearing, visual, or mobility impairment by contacting ICTC offices at (760) 592-4494. Please note 

that 48 hours advance notice will be necessary to honor your request. 

To Join by Zoom Meeting click on the following link: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/2782845227?pwd=SGpFdnEwdTZxZW4vTnVyTE1EQ0ROUT09 

To Join by Phone, dial 720-707-2699 

Meeting ID: 278 284 5227 

Passcode: 1503 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

II. ACTION CALENDAR

A. Adopt resolution authorizing remote teleconference meetings in accordance with Assembly Bill 361

With ICTC Counsel’s direction, the Executive Director forwards this item to the Management Committee

for review and approval after public comment, if any:

1. Approve the resolution of the Imperial County Transportation Commission authorizing remote

meetings in accordance with the provisions of the State Assembly Bill (AB) 361.

2. Authorize the Chairperson to sign the resolution.

III. EMERGENCY ITEMS

A. Discussion/Action of emergency items, if necessary.

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Any member of the public may address the Committee for a period not to exceed three minutes on any item of

interest not on the agenda within the jurisdiction of the Committee. The Committee will listen to all communication,

but in compliance with the Brown Act, will not take any action on items that are not on the agenda.

CITIES OF BRAWLEY, CALEXICO, CALIPATRIA, EL CENTRO, HOLTVILLE, IMPERIAL, WESTMORLAND, 

IMPERIAL IRRIGATION DISTRICT AND COUNTY OF IMPERIAL 
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V. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Approval of Management Committee Draft Minutes: February 9, 2022 

B. Receive and File:

1. ICTC Commission Minutes: February 23, 2022 

2. ICTC TAC Minutes: February 3, 2022 

3. ICTC SSTAC Minutes: February 2, 2022 

VI. REPORTS

A. ICTC / LTA / IVRMA Executive Director

• ICTC Executive Director Report

B. Southern California Association of Governments

• See attached report

C. California Department of Transportation – District 11

• See attached report

D. Committee Member Reports

VII. ICTC ACTION CALENDAR

A. Transportation Development Act (TDA) and Program Fiscal Audits for FY 2020-21

It is requested that the Management Committee forward this item to the Commission for review and approval

after public comment, if any:

1. Receive and file the Transportation Development Act and other program fiscal audits for the Imperial
County Transportation Commission, for FY 2020-21.

2. Direct staff to transmit the fiscal audits to the State Controller’s Office.

B. Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) Application for FY 2021-22 Funds

It is requested that the Management Committee forward this item to the Commission for review and approval

after public comment, if any:

1. Authorize the ICTC Chairperson to sign the attached resolution.

2. Authorization for the Execution of the LCTOP Project application: Free Fare Program for eligible ICTC

administered transit services.

VIII. NEXT MEETING DATE AND PLACE

A. The next Management Committee Meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, April 13, 2022, at 10:30 a.m. via

Zoom Meeting. 

IX. ADJOURNMENT

A. Motion to Adjourn

Pages 8-24

on page 26

on page 38

on page 44

Page 51

Page 118
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A. Adopt resolution authorizing remote teleconference
meetings in accordance with Assembly Bill 361

1. Approve the resolution of the Imperial County
Transportation Commission authorizing remote
meetings in accordance with the provisions of the
State Assembly Bill (AB) 361.

2. Authorize the Chairperson to sign the resolution.
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1503 N. IMPERIAL AVE., SUITE 104 

EL CENTRO, CA  92243-2875 

PHONE: (760) 592-4494 

FAX: (760) 592-4410 

March 4, 2022         

 

 

ICTC Management Committee  

Imperial County Transportation Commission 

1503 N. Imperial Ave., Suite 104 

El Centro, CA  92243 

 

 SUBJECT:  Resolution authorizing remote teleconference meetings in accordance with Assembly 

Bill (AB) 361  

 

Dear Committee Members: 

 

ICTC has been conducting remote public meetings since the beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic in 

compliance with Governor’s Orders N-29-20 and N-08-21. Governor’s Orders N-29-20 and N-08-21 suspended 

the Ralph M. Brown Act’s requirements for teleconferencing.   
 

AB 361 will authorize a local agency to use teleconferencing without complying with the teleconferencing 

requirements imposed by the Ralph M. Brown Act when a legislative body of a local agency holds a meeting 

during a declared state of emergency. If the Commission wishes to continue to offer a remote meeting option and 

to comply with AB 361, ICTC will need to adopt a resolution authorizing ICTC to host teleconference meetings 

in accordance with AB 361, if the Governor’s declaration of a statewide emergency continues.  

 

With ICTC Counsel’s direction, the Interim Executive Director forwards this item to the Committee for review 

and approval after public comment, if any: 
  

1. Approve the resolution of the Imperial County Transportation Commission authorizing remote 

meetings in accordance with the provisions of the State Assembly Bill (AB) 361.  

2. Authorize the Chairperson to sign the resolution.  

   
Sincerely, 

 
DAVID AGUIRRE 
Interim Executive Director 
 
Attachments 
  
DA/cl 
 
 

CCIITTIIEESS  OOFF  BBRRAAWWLLEEYY,,  CCAALLEEXXIICCOO,,  CCAALLIIPPAATTRRIIAA,,  EELL  CCEENNTTRROO,,  HHOOLLTTVVIILLLLEE,,  IIMMPPEERRIIAALL,,  WWEESSTTMMOORRLLAANNDD,,  

IIMMPPEERRIIAALL  IIRRRRIIGGAATTIIOONN  DDIISSTTRRIICCTT  AANNDD  CCOOUUNNTTYY  OOFF  IIMMPPEERRIIAALL 
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RESOLUTION OF THE IMPERIAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

AUTHORIZING REMOTE MEETINGS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS 

OF STATE ASSEMBLY BILL 361.   

 

RESOLUTION NO.___________ 

 

WHEREAS, the County of Imperial is committed to preserving and nurturing public 

access and participation in meetings of the Imperial County Transportation Commission and other 

public meetings subject to the Ralph M. Brown Act (“Brown Act”); and 

 

WHEREAS, with the adoption of State Assembly Bill 361 (“AB 361”), section 54963(e) 

of the California Government Code was amended to make provisions for remote teleconferencing 

participation in meetings by members of a local legislative body, without compliance with the 

requirements of 54953(b)(3) of the California Government Code, subject to the existence of certain 

conditions; and 

 

WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the Governor 

pursuant to section 8625 of the California Government Code, proclaiming the existence of 

conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the state 

caused by conditions as described in section 8558 of the California Government Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Governor proclaimed pursuant to his authority under 

8625 of the California Government Code, that a state of emergency exists with regard to the novel 

coronavirus (a disease now known as COVID-19); and 

 

WHEREAS, on June 4, 2021, the Governor clarified that the “reopening” of California on 

June 15, 2021, did not include any change to the proclaimed state of emergency or the powers 

exercised thereunder; and 

 

WHEREAS, as of the date of this Resolution, neither the Governor nor the Legislature 

have exercised their respective powers pursuant to section 8629 of the California Government 

Code to lift the state of emergency, either by proclamation or by concurrent resolution in the State 

Legislature; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Local Health Officer for the County of Imperial has recommended that 

the local legislative bodies that are subject to the Brown Act continue to meet remotely when 

possible, and that social distancing continues to provide a means by which to reduce the 

transmission of COVID-19; and 

 

WHEREAS, Imperial County Transportation Commission believes that it is in the best 

interest of the public to continue holding remote meetings during the existing state of emergency 

in accordance with the requirements of AB 361.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Imperial County Transportation Commission resolves as 

follows: 
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(1) The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into this

Resolution by this reference.

(2) A proclaimed state of emergency exists as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

(3) The Local Health Officer recommends that all local legislative bodies local

legislative bodies that are subject to the Brown Act continue to meet remotely when

possible, and that social distancing continues to provide a means by which to reduce

the transmission of COVID-19

(4) The staff of the Imperial County Transportation Commission are hereby authorized

and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this

Resolution, including implementing social distancing measures at meetings, and

conducting meetings in accordance with section 54953(e) of the California

Government Code, and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act.

(5) This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and shall be

effective until the earlier of thirty (30) days from adoption of the Resolution or such

time the Imperial County Transportation Commission takes action to extend the

time during which it may continue to meet remotely without compliance with

section 54953(b)(3) of the California Government Code.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Imperial County Transportation Commission, County 

of Imperial, State of California, this _____________________, by the following roll call vote: 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 

Brawley 

Calexico 

Calipatria 

El Centro 

Holtville 

Imperial 

Westmorland 

County of Imperial 

County of Imperial 

Imperial Irrigation District 

______________________________ 

NICK WELLS  

Management Committee Chair  

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 

CRISTI LERMA  

Secretary to the Commission   
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A.  Approval of Management Committee Draft Minutes:      

        February 9, 2022 

B. Receive and File:  

 

ICTC Commission Minutes:   February 23, 2022 

ICTC TAC Minutes:      February 3, 2022 

ICTC SSTAC Minutes:    February 2, 2022 
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IMPERIAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 9, 2022 
10:30 a.m. 

 
VOTING MEMBERS PRESENT: 

City of Brawley Tyler Salcido 

City of Calexico Miguel Figueroa 

City of Calipatria Rom Medina  

City of El Centro Absent 

City of Holtville Nick Wells 

City of Imperial Dennis Morita 

County of Imperial Rebecca Terrazas-Baxter for Ben Salorio 

County of Imperial Esperanza Colio-Warren 

Imperial Irrigation District Absent  

City of Westmorland Absent 

ICTC David Aguirre  

      
STAFF PRESENT: Virginia Mendoza, Cristi Lerma, Marlene Flores, Maria Gamez  
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  David Salgado: SCAG; Rafael Reyes, Benjamin Guerrero: Caltrans; Roger Martinez, Cid 
Conde: Vasquez & Co; Krista Glotzbach: Via Transportation; Jacob Leon: KTUA 
 

The following minutes are listed as they were acted upon by the Imperial County Transportation Commission 
Management Committee and as listed on the agenda for the meeting held Wednesday, February 9, 2022, 
together with staff reports and related documents attached thereto and incorporated therein by reference. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Chair Nick wells called the meeting to order at 10:34 a.m., roll call was taken, and a quorum was 
present. 
 

II. ACTION CALENDAR  
 

A. Adopt resolution authorizing remote teleconference meetings in accordance with 
Assembly Bill 361 

 
1. Approved the resolution of the Imperial County Transportation Commission 

authorizing remote meetings in accordance with the provisions of the State 
Assembly Bill (AB) 361.  

2. Authorized the Chairperson to sign the resolution. 
 
A motion was made by Colio-Warren seconded by Morita to approve this item with a change to 
the resolution to include the City of Imperial; Roll call was taken:  
 

Agency Roll Call  

City of Brawley Yes 

City of Calipatria Yes 

City of Calexico Yes  

City of El Centro Absent 

City of Holtville  Yes 

City of Imperial Yes  
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County of Imperial Salorio Absent 

County of Imperial Warren Yes  

City of Westmorland  Absent 

Imperial Irrigation District  Absent  

 
III. EMERGENCY ITEMS 

There were none.  
 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were none. 
 

V. CONSENT ITEMS  
A motion was made by Morita seconded by Salcido to approve the consent calendar as presented; 
Roll call was taken:  

Agency Roll Call  

City of Brawley Yes 

City of Calipatria Yes 

City of Calexico Yes  

City of El Centro Absent 

City of Holtville  Yes 

City of Imperial Yes  

County of Imperial Salorio Absent 

County of Imperial Warren Yes  

City of Westmorland  Absent 

Imperial Irrigation District  Absent  

  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

VI. REPORTS 

A. ICTC Executive Director  
 

⁻ Ms. Mendoza had the following updates:  
o Application for the STBG and CMAQ program are due by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, 

February 25, 2022 (or postmarked no later than February 25, 2022) to ICTC at 

1503 N. Imperial Ave., Suite 104, El Centro, CA 92243. For additional 

information, please contact Marlene Flores at (760) 592-4494 or at 

marleneflores@imperialctc.org.   

o The next IMBA meeting is scheduled for March 10, 2022 via Zoom Meeting.  

 
- Mr. Aguirre had the following updates:  

o The Calexico Intermodal Transportation Center continues as a regional 
priority. The design phase is currently at 90 % of the project. Right of Way 
acquisition continues to be underway. ICTC with Caltrans submitted a grant 
to assist with the funding for construction. More funding opportunities will 
continue to be explored. $12.5 million is needed for construction. The 
Calexico ITC site is located at 3rd Street between Rockwood and Heffernan.  

o Calexico East Port of Entry Bridge Widening Project is underway. The design 
portion of the project is ongoing. The project is estimated to begin 
construction in early 2022 and is scheduled for completion in 2023. 
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o The Free Fares Program is ending. IVT will begin charging customers the 
regular fare on April 1, 2022. Staff will continue to pursue grant opportunities 
to provide free fares at a later time. 
 

B. Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG)  
- The 2022 SCAG Regional Conference and General Assembly is scheduled for May 4-6, 

2022. The Regional Conference and General Assembly will be held at the JW Marriott 
Desert Springs Resort & Spa in Palm Desert, CA. Agencies must appoint their 
delegates for them to be a voting member.  

- SCAG President Clint Lorimore joined Regional Council members Cheryl Viegas-
Walker and Luis Plancarte for a tour of several regionally significant projects 
underway in Imperial County. The tour began with an up-close look at the Calexico, 
U.S./Mexico land Ports of Entry border improvement projects that will improve the 
flow of goods and people, further supporting the region’s ongoing economic 
recovery. The tour also allowed for an opportunity to see Imperial County’s vital role 
as an agricultural leader in the state and nation, highlighting the county’s vast 
agricultural area. The afternoon concluded with a visit to the Salton Sea area 
Geothermal Fields where investments in lithium extraction and further geothermal 
energy development will help the state continue to meet the future needs for clean, 
reliable energy. Mr. Salgado thanked the County and ICTC for assistance with the 
coordination efforts. 

- Applications are now available for the 2022 SCAG Scholarship Program. The SCAG 
Scholarship Program offers a $4,000 scholarship award for seven high school seniors 
or community college students from the SCAG region (and potentially two additional 
scholarship awards that are not tied to a specific county but may be awarded at the 
Regional Council’s discretion) and the opportunity to meet with elected officials and 
practicing planners to learn more about careers in public service. To be eligible for 
the scholarship, students must be a resident within the SCAG region, enrolled as a 
high school senior or community college student, have at least a 3.0 GPA and be 
eligible to work in the United States. Applicants must complete an application form 
and submit an essay, two letters of recommendation, and a current transcript. All 
materials must be submitted by Friday, April 1. For more information visit 
scag.ca.gov/students. 

- A full list of announcements is on page 34 of the agenda. 
 

C. Caltrans Department of Transportation – District 11 
- Mr. Hernandez had the following updates:  

o The I-8/Imperial Avenue Interchange project was opened to traffic on 
December 21, 2021. The landscaping has been completed. The community 
identifier installation is undergoing adjustments and is estimated to installed 
in late January.  

o Progress has been made on Stage 1 of the SR-98 widening project, between 
Rockwood and Ollie Avenue. Stage 2 is expected to begin in March 2022. The 
project is estimated to be completed by late 2022.  

- Mr. Guerrero had the following updates:  
o Mr. Guerrero introduced Dylan Moore to the group.  

 
D. Committee Member Reports  

⁻ There were no updates. 
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VII. ACTION CALENDAR  
 

A. Imperial County Regional Active Transportation Plan 
 
The ICTC Technical Advisory Committee met on February 3, 2022, and forwarded this item 
to the Management Committee for review and consideration. It was requested that the 
Management Committee forward this item to the Commission for review and approval 
after public comment, if any: 
 
1. Approve the adoption of the Imperial County Regional Active Transportation Plan. 
 
A motion was made by Morita seconded by Colio-Warren to approve Action A. Roll call 
was taken: 

   
Agency Roll 

Call  

City of Brawley Yes 

City of Calipatria Yes 

City of Calexico Yes  

City of El Centro Absent 

City of Holtville  Yes 

City of Imperial Yes  

County of Imperial Terrazas-Baxter for Salorio Yes 

County of Imperial Warren Yes  

City of Westmorland  Absent 

Imperial Irrigation District  Absent  

 
 Motion carried unanimously. 
 
B. Proposed Distribution plan for the COVID Relief Funds FY 2021-22- Coronavirus Response 

and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSAA) 

 
The ICTC Technical Advisory Committee met on February 3, 2022, and forwarded this item 
to the Management Committee for review and consideration. It was requested that the 
Management Committee forward this item to the Commission for review and approval 
after public comment, if any: 
 
1. Approve Proposed Distribution Plan for the CRRSAA funds 

a. Option #2 Flat Distribution for Jurisdictions with less than 10,000 population 
Plan, with the caveat if the Cities of Westmorland, Holtville and Calipatria do 
not have projects to propose their amount would be equably distributed to 
the other agencies. 

b. Direct staff to return with a list of recommended projects for approval by the 
Commission 

2. Authorize staff to submit the recommended projects to the California 
Transportation Commission (CTC). 

  
A motion was made by Salcido seconded by Figueroa. Roll call was taken: 

   
Agency Roll Call  

City of Brawley Yes 
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City of Calipatria Yes 

City of Calexico Yes  

City of El Centro Absent 

City of Holtville  Yes 

City of Imperial Yes  

County of Imperial Terrazas-Baxter for Salorio Yes 

County of Imperial Warren Yes  

City of Westmorland  Absent 

Imperial Irrigation District  Absent  

 
 Motion carried unanimously. 

 
C. Imperial County Transportation Commission (ICTC) resolution for Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 

20222/2023 – 2027/2028 Federal Transportation Improvement Program 
 

 The ICTC Technical Advisory Committee met on February 3, 2022 and forwarded this item 
to the Management Committee for review and consideration. It was requested that the 
Management Committee forward this item to the Commission for review and approval 
after public comment, if any: 

 
1. Authorize the Chairman to sign the resolution that certifies funding has been 

identified for the projects in the FFY 2022/2023 - 2027/2028 FTIP and affirms our 
commitment to implement all projects in the program. 

 
A motion was made by Morita seconded by Colio-Warren. Roll call was taken: 

   
Agency Roll Call  

City of Brawley Yes 

City of Calipatria Yes 

City of Calexico Yes  

City of El Centro Absent 

City of Holtville  Yes 

City of Imperial Yes  

County of Imperial Terrazas-Baxter for Salorio Yes 

County of Imperial Warren Yes  

City of Westmorland  Absent 

Imperial Irrigation District  Absent  

 
 Motion carried unanimously. 

 
VIII. LTA ACTION CALENDAR  
 

A. Imperial County Local Transportation Authority Annual Financial Audit for Fiscal Year Ended June 
30, 2021 

 
It was requested that the ICTC Management Committee forward this item to the LTA Board for 
their review and approval after public comment, if any: 

 
1. Receive, Approve and File the FY 2020-21 Imperial County Local Transportation 

Authority Annual Financial Audit for the following agencies: Brawley, Calexico, Calipatria, 
El Centro, Holtville, Imperial, Westmorland, the County of Imperial and the ICLTA. 
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A motion was made by Morita seconded by Wells. Roll call was taken: 

   
Agency Roll Call  

Agency Roll Call  

City of Brawley Yes 

City of Calipatria Yes 

City of Calexico Yes  

City of El Centro Absent 

City of Holtville  Yes 

City of Imperial Yes  

County of Imperial Terrazas-Baxter for Salorio Yes 

County of Imperial Warren Yes  

City of Westmorland  Absent 

 
 Motion carried unanimously. 

 
IX. The next meeting is scheduled for March 9, 2022, at 10:30 a.m. via Zoom Meeting.   

 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 

A. Meeting adjourned at 12:08 p.m. 
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 IMPERIAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
OFFICIAL MINUTES FOR FEBRUARY 23, 2022 

6:00 p.m. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________  
VOTING MEMBERS PRESENT:  
    City of Brawley  Absent 
    City of Calipatria  Maria Nava-Froelich via zoom 
    City of Calexico  Rosie Arreola-Fernandez  
    City of El Centro Absent  
    City of Imperial  Robert Amparano  
    City of Holtville   Ginger Ward via zoom   
    City of Westmorland Ana Beltran 
    County of Imperial Ryan Kelley via zoom 
    County of Imperial  Absent 
    Imperial Irrigation District  Absent  
             
NON-VOTING MEMBERS PRESENT:  Caltrans District 11     Gustavo Dallarda via zoom 
 
STAFF PRESENT: David Aguirre, Cristi Lerma, Virginia Mendoza 
OTHERS PRESENT: All via zoom – David Salgado: SCAG; Layla Sarwari: Counsel; Tim Kelley, Sean Wilcock: 

IVEDC; Jacob Leon: KTUA  
 
The following action minutes are listed as they were acted upon by the Imperial County Transportation 
Commission and as listed on the agenda for the meeting held Wednesday, February 23, 2022, together with 
staff reports and related documents attached thereto and incorporated therein by reference. 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL   
Chair Arreola-Fernandez called the Commission meeting to order at 6:43 p.m. Roll call was taken, 
and a quorum was present. 
 

II. ACTION CALENDAR 
A. Adopt resolution authorizing remote teleconference meetings in accordance with 

Assembly Bill 361 
 

1. Approved the resolution of the Imperial County Transportation Commission 
authorizing remote meetings in accordance with the provisions of the State 
Assembly Bill (AB) 361.  

2. Authorized the Chairperson to sign the resolution. 
 

A motion was made by Amparano and seconded by Kelley, roll call:   
  

Agency Roll Call  

City of Brawley Absent 

City of Calipatria Yes 

City of Calexico Yes 

City of El Centro Absent 

City of Holtville  Yes 

City of Imperial Yes 

County of Imperial Plancarte Absent 

County of Imperial Kelley Yes 

City of Westmorland  Yes 

Imperial Irrigation District  Absent 

  Motion Carried. 
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III. CLOSED SESSION 

A. Motion to convene to Closed Session  
 A motion was not made, and this item was continued for another meeting.   
B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  
 Initiation of litigation (1 matter) (Government Code § 54956.9(d)(4))  
C. Announcement of Closed Session Action(s)  
 

IV. EMERGENCY ITEMS 
  There were none.  
 

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
There were no public comments received. 
 

VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. ICTC Commission Minutes:    January 26, 2022 
B. Received and Filed: 

1. ICTC Management Committee Minutes:  January 12, 2022 
2. ICTC TAC Minutes:    December 16, 2021 
3. ICTC SSTAC Minutes:   January 5, 2022 
 

C. Imperial County Transportation Commission (ICTC) resolution for Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 
2022/2023 – 2027/2028 Federal Transportation Improvement Program 

  
1. Authorized the Chairman to sign the resolution that certifies funding has been 

identified for the projects in the FFY 2022/2023 - 2027/2028 FTIP and affirms our 
commitment to implement all projects in the program. 

 
D. Agreement between the Imperial County Transportation Commission (ICTC)/Service 

Authority for Freeway Emergencies (SAFE) and the Department of California Highway 
Patrol (CHP) for Call Box Services and Assistance 

   
1. Approved the Agreement with the Department of California Highway Patrol (CHP) 

for services and assistance provided by CHP for the motorist aid call box system, 
for the term of January 1, 2022, through December 31, 2024, in the amount not 
to exceed $2,300.   

2. Authorized the Interim Executive Director to sign the agreement. 
 

A motion was made by Amparano and seconded by Nava-Froelich to approve the consent 
calendar as presented, roll call:  
      

Agency Roll Call  

City of Brawley Absent 

City of Calipatria Yes 

City of Calexico Yes 

City of El Centro Absent 

City of Holtville  Yes 

City of Imperial Yes 

County of Imperial Plancarte Absent 

County of Imperial Kelley Yes 

City of Westmorland  Yes 

Imperial Irrigation District  Absent 
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 Motion Carried. 
 

VII. REPORTS 
A. ICTC Executive Director 

⁻ Updates were provided by Ms. Mendoza and Mr. Aguirre. All updates are on the 
Executive Director report on page 53 of the agenda.   

 

B. Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG)  
- Updates were provided by Mr. Salgado. All updates are on the SCAG report on page 

65 of the agenda. 
 

C. California Department of Transportation (Caltrans)- District 11   
- Updates were provided by Mr. Dallarda. All updates are on the Caltrans report on 

page 72 of the agenda.  
 

D. Commission Member Reports  
- There were none.   

 

VIII. ACTION CALENDER 
 

A. Imperial County Regional Active Transportation Plan 
 
1. Approved the adoption of the Imperial County Regional Active Transportation Plan. 
 
A motion was made by Nava-Froelich and seconded by Amparano, roll call:  
   

Agency Roll Call  

City of Brawley Absent 

City of Calipatria Yes 

City of Calexico Yes 

City of El Centro Absent 

City of Holtville  Yes 

City of Imperial Yes 

County of Imperial Plancarte Absent 

County of Imperial Kelley Yes 

City of Westmorland  Yes 

Imperial Irrigation District  Absent 

Motion Carried.  
 

B. Proposed Distribution plan for the COVID Relief Funds FY 2021-22- Coronavirus Response 
and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSAA) 

  
1. Approved Proposed Distribution Plan for the CRRSAA funds 

a. Option #2 Flat Distribution for Jurisdictions with less than 10,000 population Plan, 
with the caveat if the Cities of Westmorland, Holtville and Calipatria do not have 
projects to propose their amount would be equably distributed to the other 
agencies. 

b. Directed staff to return with a list of recommended projects for approval by the 
Commission 

2. Authorized staff to submit the recommended projects to the California Transportation 
Commission (CTC). 

 
 A motion was made by Nava-Froelich and seconded by Kelley, roll call: 
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Agency Roll Call  

City of Brawley Absent 

City of Calipatria Yes 

City of Calexico Yes 

City of El Centro Absent 

City of Holtville  Yes 

City of Imperial Yes 

County of Imperial Plancarte Absent 

County of Imperial Kelley Yes 

City of Westmorland  Yes 

Imperial Irrigation District  Absent 

  Motion Carried. 
 

 

IX. INFORMATION CALENDAR 
 
 A. Imperial Valley Economic Development Corporation Program Updates  
  1. EPA Brownfields Initiative 

  
Mr. Wilcock provided an update on the status of the EPA Brownfields initiative. 
 

  2. Southern Border Broadband Consortium  
   
  Mr. Kelley provided an update on the status of the Southern Border Broadband Consortium.  
 
X. NEXT MEETING DATE AND PLACE 

A. The next meeting will be tentatively on March 23, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. at the ICTC Offices, 
1503 N. Imperial Ave., Suite 104, El Centro, CA 92243 and via Zoom Meeting.  
 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 
A. Meeting Adjourned at 8:34 p.m.  
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1503 N. IMPERIAL AVE., SUITE 104 

EL CENTRO, CA  92243-2875 

PHONE: (760) 592-4494 

FAX: (760) 592-4410 

 

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

February 3, 2022 

 Present:  

  Abraham Campos  City of El Centro 

 Adriana Anguis   City of Holtville 

 Veronica Atondo  County of Imperial 

 Jesus Villegas   City of Imperial 

 Lili Falomir   City of Calexico 

  Jeorge Galvan   City of Calipatria 

 Ramiro Barajas   City of Westmorland 
  

 Others: 

 David Aguirre   ICTC 

 Virginia Mendoza  ICTC  

 Marlene Flores   ICTC 

 Angela Delgadillo  ICTC 

 Andres Miramontes  City of El Centro  

 Angel Hernandez  City of El Centro 

 Felix De Leon   City of El Centro 

 Christian Rodriguez               City of El Centro 

 Juan Manuel Cabrera  City of Brawley 

 Phillip Ramirez   City of Brawley 

 Guillermo Sillas   City of Brawley 

 Ana Gutierrez   City of Brawley 

 Marco Coronel   City of Imperial 

 Lisa Tylenda    City of Calexico 

 Ismael Garcia   County of Imperial 

 Ben Guerrero   Caltrans 

 Alexander Araiza  Caltrans 

 Daniel Hernandez  Caltrans 

 Jacob Leon   KTUA 
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1. The meeting was called to order at 10:02 a.m. A quorum was present, and introductions were made. 

There were no public comments made.  

 

2. Adopted resolution authorizing remote teleconference meeting in accordance with Assembly Bill 

361. ICTC requested a motion to adopt. (Campos/Anguis). Motion Carried. 

 

3. Rotation of Chair and Vice-Chair Positions 

- A motion was made by Abraham Campos and seconded by Jesus Villegas to nominate the 

City of Brawley as the Chair for 2022, Motion Carried.  

- A motion was made by Marco Coronel and seconded by Veronica Atondo to nominate the 

City of Calipatria (Jeorge Galvan) as the Vise-Chair for 2022. Motion Carried. 

 

4. A motion was made to adopt the minutes for December 16, 2021 (Atondo/Campos) Motion Carried. 

 

5. Regional Active Transportation Plan 

(Presented by: Jacob Leon, KTUA) 

- Jacob Leon from KTUA provided a presentation on the Active Transportation Plan (ATP). 

The ATP will assess community needs through site visits and community workshops and 

it will identify and prioritize active transportation projects. 

- Mr. Leon points out how important it is to first analyze the existing conditions such as 

access points, destination, and physical constraints. By understanding the context, the 

consultants were able to pinpoint which cities have and do not have. 

- Jacob also provided a very detailed overview on the Community Engagement and how it 

has a significant impact on the process. For instance, there was a website and surveys 

provided for the public. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) informed the team of 

outreach opportunities, stakeholder meetings were conducted, and fifteen community 

workshops were conducted through the ATP planning process. 

- Eleven data collection workshops were held between July 16 and August 26, 2021. 

- Four Project recommendations workshops were held between October 28 and November 

6, 2021. 

- Some factors being considered on how the projects were identified are the popular 

destinations, demographics, reported collisions, future projects, and stakeholder input.  

- Mr. Leon explained how the following cities and communities needed a special focus with 

the planning effort based on lack of plan or a dated plan, City of Brawley, City of 

Westmorland, City of Holtville, Bombay Shores, Desert Shores, Palo Verde, and Salton 

Sea Beach. 

- The final layer of this process is that the projects should be prioritized. It is a data-driven 

process consisting of cumulative scored derived from various criteria. 

- Jacob Leon gave a brief description of the Regional Projects that were drafted and included 

two distinct types of maps. The first one being the pedestrian improvements. The second 

map demonstrates the existing bikeways and proposed bikeways.  

- A motion was made to approve the adoption of the Imperial County Regional Active 

Transportation Plan. (Anguis/Ramirez) Motion Carried. 

 

6. Imperial County Transportation Commission (ICTC) Resolution for Federal Fiscal Year 

2022/2023-2027/2028 Federal Transportation 

(Presented by: Virginia Mendoza) 

- Virginia Mendoza provided a brief overview of the Federal Transportation Improvement 

Program (FTIP) and projects submitted on the 2023 FTIP along with a resolution letter 

stating the commitment to implement all listed projects in the FTIP.  

- ICTC Staff forwards this item to the Technical Advisory Committee for discussion and 

recommendation to submit to the ICTC Management Committee and Commission after 
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public comments, if any:  

- A motion was made to Authorize the Chairman to sign the resolution that certifies funding 

has been identified for the projects in the FFY 2022/2023 - 2027/2028 FTIP and affirms 

our commitment to implement all projects in the program. (Atondo/Campos) Motion 

Carried. 
 

7. Housing Issues Senate Bill 9 Housing Development: Approvals and Senate Bill 10 Planning 

and Zoning: housing development: density 

(Presented by: Jeorge Galvan, The Holt Group) 

- Jeorge Galvan explains the Senate Bill 9 and 10 and how both Bills provide opportunities 

for affordable housing. The Senate Bill 9 has been called the duplex law, which allows 

duplexes in single family zones. This changes things such as requiring a one parking space 

per unit. It also allows for subdivision existing single family residential lot. 

- This means in terms for transportation and public works issues is that there will be higher 

density developments in residential zones.  

- Mr. Galvan also explains the Senate Bill 10 which is an up zoning and transit rich areas. 

This leads to potential higher densities.  

- Phillip Ramirez from the City of Brawley commented on how he has seen up to four homes 

in one lot and notices the difficulty and the issues of the small driveways and how that 

would lead them to park in the streets.  

- Mr. Galvan discusses how he would like to know if there are any other potential issues 

there can be regarding the passage of this new law and what could be done to address those 

items. 

- Abraham Campos from the City of El Centro comments how it is a discussion item with 

Management. The biggest issue being affordability. He explains that what they are trying 

to do is densify what they already have. He also comments how he has seen other agencies 

updating and revising their zoning ordinances to create a procedure of when and how to 

develop an add residences. 

- Mr. Campos suggested to bring back this item for discussion in the following. 

 

8. Caltrans Updates / Announcements (Presented by: Ben Guerrero): 

- As of January 27, 2022 the INACTIVE and Future Inactive list was updated. Action is required 

by the County of Imperial, as well as these cities: Brawley, Calexico, El Centro, and Imperial. 

- Notify Caltrans with any anticipated submittal date for a forthcoming inactive project invoice. 

FHWA now requires status updated quarterly. 

- Obligation Authority (OA) funds for redistribution are dwindling faster than in prior years.  

- Transmit all RFA details on LAPM Exhibit 3-A and use the newest version from January 

2022- https://forms.dot.ca.gov/v2Forms/servlet/FormRenderer?frmid=LAPM3A  

- As of January 10, 2022, the list of active project end dates was updated. To avoid expiration, 

action is required by the County of Imperial, as well as these cities: Calexico, Holtville, and 

Imperial.  

- The Active Transportation Program Branch workshops focus on Program education, region-

specific and questions relating to the upcoming 2023 ATP Cycle. These workshops are 

specific to a county/region; therefore, are not mandatory for all stakeholders to participate. It 

is held on Monday, February 28, 2022 from 12:30pm-2:30pm. 

- To participate via GoToMeeting, use the following link: 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/717772317  

- 2022 Local Assistance Publication Updates:Caltrans has released updates to the 2022 Local 

Assistance Procedures Manual (LAPM) and the Local Assistance Program Guideline 

(LAPG). All changes appear in Local Programs Procedures (LPP). 

- Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Update: 

- Exhibit 9-F must accompany every invoice that involves payment to a DBE subcontractor. 
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- Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Update: 

- Exhibit 9-F must accompany every invoice that involves payment to a DBE subcontractor.  

- http://www.localassistanceblog.com/2021/10/06/annual-disadvantaged-business-enterprise-

goal  

- Quality Assurance Program (QAP) approval expires in January 2022 for the City of Imperial.  

- Subsidized Classes for Local Agencies are available to apply. Both the Federal Aid Series 

and Resident Engineers Academy courses fill-up quickly. 

- Title VI Nondiscrimination Program: 

- On February 16, 2021 Caltrans Division of Local Assistance delivered training for Local 

Public Agencies (LPA) to implement the federally mandated Title VI Program. This training 

provides the LPA with FHWA requirements of Title VI to incorporate nondiscrimination 

principles in all locally administered federal-funded programs, plans, and activities.  

- Subsidized Classes for Local Agencies-New Learning Opportunities in 2022!  

- Both the Federal Aid Series and Resident Engineers Academy courses fill-up quickly.  

 

9. SCAG Updates / Announcements: 

- No SCAG Updates were presented. 

 

10. Cities and County Planning / Public Works Updates: 

 - Local agencies gave an update on their local projects in progress.  

 

11. ICTC Updates / Announcements                      

(Presented by David Aguirre, Virginia Mendoza, and Marlene Flores) 

a. Transit Planning Updates 

- ICTC is still operating under COVID-19 requirements those which include Free fares for 

Transit riders including Med Trans. However, the Free Fare Program for all IVT Services 

will end March 31, 2022. These services will begin charging regular fares beginning April 

1, 2022. The Calexico ITC Project is nearly complete and has been reviewed by the City 

of Calexico.  

b. Transportation Planning Updates 

1. COVID Relief Funds FY 2021-2022 (CRRSAA) 

The CRRSAA funds distribution amounts should be approved by our 

Commission by February 23, 2022. After approval, the cities and county will 

need to submit to ICTC a letter stating what they plan to use the CRRSAA 

funds on. (Sample Letters attached to agenda packet.)  

2. 2022 CMAQ and STBG Call for Projects 

2022 CMAQ and STBG Project Applications are due by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, 

February 25, 2022. 

3. FY 21/22 Federal and State Project Obligation Status  

Marlene Flores went through the different cities to get an update on the Federal 

and State Project Obligations Status. 

    

12. General Discussion / New Business 

No New Business  

 

Next TAC meeting will be February 24, 2022, via Zoom 

 

13. Meeting adjourned at 12:04 p.m.  
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1503 N. IMPERIAL AVE., SUITE 104 
EL CENTRO, CA  92243-2875 

PHONE: (760) 592-4494 

FAX: (760) 592-4410 
 

SOCIAL SERVICES TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COUNCIL  

 

  DRAFT MINUTES  February 2, 2022 

 

Present       Voting Attendees: 

Ted Ceasar   Consumer 

Kathleen Lang   California Health & Wellness (CH&W) 

Mitzi Perez   ARC-IV 

Raul Cordova   Work Training Center (WTC) 

Karen Teran   Access to Independence 

James Dalske   Imperial Valley College (IVC) 

Lorena Arambula  San Diego Regional Center (SDRC) 

Mike Hack   Consumer 

David Aguirre   CTSA–ICTC 

Maricela Galarza  CTSA–ICTC 

Gustavo Gomez   CTSA–ICTC  

   

Non-Voting Attendees:   

Cesar Sanchez   IVT/IVTAccess/IVTRide/IVTMedtrans 

Helio Sanchez   IVT 

  Jose Guillen   IVT MedTrans 

  Karla Pacheco   IVT Access 

  David Salgado   SCAG 

  Liz Santucci   Caltrans 

   

       

1. Dr. Lang called the meeting to order at 10:08 a.m. A quorum was present. Introductions were 

made. 

- Hybrid meeting. 

 

2. SSTAC Remote Resolution. 

- Ms. Galarza explained the purpose of the implementation of the resolution. The resolution will 

be required for this meeting and future meetings until further notice. 

- SSTAC members reviewed the resolution, motioned to approve as is. (Perez, Cordova), 

Motion Carried. 

- Required signatures will be collected after the meeting.  

 

3. Minutes were adopted for December 1, 2021. (Cordova, Perez), Motion Carried. 
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4. Minutes were adopted for January 5, 2022. (Cordova, Perez), Motion Carried. 

 

5. CTSA Reports:   

 

Mr. Aguirre had the following updates: 

- The Calexico Intermodal Transportation Center design is 95% complete. The project is in the 

process of right away acquisition and securing funding for construction efforts.  

- Transit services are running as close to a regular schedule. There is a seen increase in 

passengers on the fixed-route service. For all other services, when demand seems to pick up 

vehicles are ready to take on that demand.  

- The free fares program is anticipated to end on March 31, 2022. Staff is pursuing another 

grant to possibly cover additional free fares, but will not hear from the grant until the latest 

part of the year.  

 

Mr. Gomez had the following updates: 

- IVT Ride and IVT Access sign-ups have increased during the last couple of months.  

- IVT Access and IVT Ride continue to be remotely conducted, but the public does have the 

option to come to the office to sign up for IVT Ride or pick up an application for IVT Access. 

- In January staff conducted a presentation for the Access to Independence wellness class.  

- Staff is available to provide presentations or provide any information to agencies.  

 

Ms. Galarza had the following updates: 

- Staff conducted outreach to pass out brochures and rider’s guides to those who requested. If 

anyone is interested or was missed, please let staff know. Outreach was conducted in the El Centro, 

Brawley, and Westshore areas.  

- Staff is attempting to conduct as much physical outreach as possible, yet it's still limited. 

Nevertheless, the staff is available to provide zoom presentations  

 

6. FY 2022-23 Master Needs List: 

- Ms. Galarza presented and explained both the Master Needs List and UTN sample letter purpose 

through the Unmet Transit Needs process.  

- After discussion, STACC members requested to remove number 11 on the Master Needs List, 

which states “Add bus service and bus stop near El Centro Clinicas de Salud.” This item was 

implemented in July 2021.  

- Dr. Lang called a motion to approve. (Cesar, Hack) Motion Carried. 

- Adoption of list 

 

UTN Support Letter: 

- After discussion, SSTAC members requested some amendments to the UTN Support letter, they 

are as follows; 

✓ Under the priorities section, remove priority one which states, “Add bus service and bus 

stop near El Centro Clinicas de Salud.”  

✓ Under the priorities section, add a new priority as number two which states, “Provide bus 

stop improvement (e.g., seating and shade) on Cole Rd. in the City of Calexico, in front 

of Denny’s Diner.”  

✓ Under the priorities section, the priorities will be numbered as follows; 

 1. Add a mobile ticketing fare option (e.g., passengers, third parties). 

2. Provide bus stop improvement (e.g., seating and shade) on Cole Rd. in the City of 

Calexico, in front of Denny’s Diner. 

 3. Provide curb to curb intercity transportation to Seniors. 

4. Add an IVC Express Route from Calexico to IVC and from IVC to Calexico in the 
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evening after 5:30 p.m. 

             Dr. Lang called a motion to approve all amendments to the letter. (Cordova, Perez) Motion Carried. 

- Adoption of letter 

• Mr. Aguirre stated that the UTN will partake in a similar process from the previous fiscal 

year. 

• Ms. Galarza added that the UTN survey will be sent via email to all SSTAC 

members to share to whom may be interested to share feedback. The survey will 

also be available through affiliated transit service websites and social media. 

 

7. Transit Operator 2nd Quarter Reports: 

 

 Imperial Valley Transit 

- Mr. H. Sanchez presented the 2nd quarter report for the service. 

- Service is running well.  

 

IVT Access 

- Ms. Pacheco presented 2nd quarter report for the service. 

- Service is running smoothly. 

- Free fares are still provided, demand is still the same. 

- IVC will open up to more in-person instruction, the service will hopefully gain ridership from 

this occurring.  

 

IVT Ride 

- Mr. C. Sanchez presented the 2nd quarter report for all IVT Ride services. 

- An increase in ridership is observed during December in comparison to October. December is 

usually a slow month, but this quarter shows otherwise. 

 

IVT MedTrans 

- Mr. Guillen presented a 2nd quarter report for the service. 

- Demand has remained the same.  

- Service hours are the same and both buses are available. It is in response to demand. 

- December’s demand decreased.  

 

8. General Discussion  

- None. 

 

9. Adjournment 

- The meeting adjourned at 10:38 a.m. (Cordova, Lang), Motion Carried.  

- The next meeting will be held on Wednesday, March 2, 2022, at the Imperial County 

Transportation Commission Office, 1503 N. Imperial Ave., Suite 104, El Centro, CA 

92243. 
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A. ICTC/LTA/IVRMA EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT  

B. SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF              

GOVERNMENTS REPORT  

C. CALIFORNIA DEPATMENT OF TRANSPORTATION-  

DISTRICT 11 

D. COMMITTEE MEMBER REPORTS  
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1503 N IMPERIAL AVE SUITE 104 

EL CENTRO, CA  92243-2875 

PHONE: (760) 592-4494 

FAX: (760) 592-4410 

Memorandum 
 

Date: March 4, 2022  

To: ICTC Committee Members 

From: David Aguirre, Interim Executive Director 

Re: Executive Director’s Report  
 

The following is a summary of the Executive Director’s Report for the ICTC Commission meeting on March 9, 

2022 

 

1) State Route 86 (Northbound) Border Patrol Checkpoint: State Route 86 (Northbound) Border Patrol 

Checkpoint: In August 2017 following a year of coordination, Caltrans, the County of Imperial and ICTC met 

with CBP management and operations staff achieved consensus for a new conceptual alternative prepared by 

Caltrans. The LTA Board met on September 27, 2017, staff presented the Board with a fund request for $1.3 

million from the 5% Regional Highway Set-Aside from the Measure D allocations. A Consultant Agreement 

with AECOM for design and construction engineering was approved by the LTA on February 28, 2018. 

Following our ICTC Board meeting in late Septermber 2020, ICTC has initiated a traffic study as required by 

Caltrans. Design work has been delayed due to Border Patrol’s concern related to their ability to provide 

additional funding necessary to meet their operational requirements. Discussions have been on-going through to 

this week of March 15, 2021. On Wednesday, March 17, 2021 ICTC received confirmation from Border Patrol 

Headquarters in Washington D.C. that they wish to proceed with the original Canopy Design that is similar to 

Interstate 8 Pine Valley Checkpoint.  

 

As discussed and confirmed with Border Patrol, ICTC will only provide the remaining funds we had available 

(February 2021) of approximately $1 million to complete the traffic study, 100% design plans, and construction 

of the canopy, lighting related to the canopy, and traffic related improvements required by Caltrans. Border 

Patrol has committed paying for all other construction related costs and Border Patrol will lead the construction 

contract. Border Patrol, Caltrans and ICTC are having bi-weekly meetings toward completing design plans and 

Caltrans Permits with a goal to begin construction in 2022 with construction completed in approximately six 

months after construction begins. 

 

2) Funding for Phase II of the Calexico West Port of Entry: As previously noted, Congress authorized $98 

million for Phase 1. The U.S. General Services Administration (GSA) began construction for Phase 1 in 

December 2015 with completion now scheduled for July 2018. Phase 2A was awarded in the amount of 

$191million and will include six additional northbound privately-owned vehicle (POV) inspection lanes, 

permanent southbound POV inspection, expanded secondary inspection and adding a pre-primary canopy, new 

administration building, and employee parking structure. Funding for phase 2B was awarded in the amount of 

$103.4 million. Work for phase 2B will include demolition of the old port building and construction of the new 

pedestrian building. The total estimated investment for the Calexico West POE improvements are $416.2 million.  
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3) Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBG) and Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Program 

(CMAQ) 2022 Call for Projects – FFY 2022/2023 to FFY 2024/2025: The STBG and CMAQ Call For Projects 

began on November 18, 2021. The approved 2022 CMAQ & STBG Guidelines are posted on the ICTC website at 

http://www.imperialctc.org/call-for-projects/. Applications were submitted on Friday, February 25, 2022 to ICTC 

office. All agencies submitted with the exception of the City of Westomrland and IID. A total of 10 STBG and 11 

CMAQ applications were submitted. Funding request exceed the CMAQ and STBG amounts available for the three 

(3) fiscal years.  

 

Program  Total Amount 

Available 

Amount Requested 

by All Applicants 

CMAQ $5,222,306 $9,136,697 

STBG $7,706,117 $16,640,508 

 

4) Imperial Mexicali Binational Alliance (IMBA):. The next IMBA meeting is scheduled for March 10, 2022 via 

Zoom. Border infrastructure project updates will be the primary focus of the meeting. 

 

5) Regional Active Transportation Plan: The Imperial County Transportation Commission completed the 

Regional Active Transportation Plan (ATP) to improve access, mobility, and safety for non-motorized modes of 

travel, including walking, bicycling, and riding trans it. The final plan was adopted by ICTC on February 23, 

2022. The Plan and all supporting documents are available to all ICTC member agencies. ICTC staff plans to 

incorporate the ATP to the upcoming Long Range Transportation Project.  
 

6) 2022 Long Range Transportation Plan: The ICTC in its capacity as the Regional Transportation Planning 

Agency is responsible to lead the Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) in Imperial County. The last update 

to the LRTP was conducted in 2013. ICTC staff completed a Request for Proposal (RFP) to prepare a full update 

of the Imperial County LRTP. Michael Baker International was the selected consultant. 

 

The goal of the LRTP is to provide the following:  

• Identify and promote the relationship between the transportation system to existing and future land use and 

community comprehensive plans and programs.  

• Provide guidance to promote the improvement of multi-modal transportation circulation of people and goods, 

using both motorized and non-motorized transportation modes, new technologies and infrastructure facilities. 

• Recommendations and guidance to provide a safe, efficient, accessible, socially equitable and cost-effective 

transportation system. 

• Ensure compliance with state and federal transportation planning regulations 

• Develop recommendations that ensure environmentally sustainable planning practices. 

 

ICTC Staff is working with the consultant team in finalizing the project implementation plan. The stakeholder list 

for the LRTP will be comprehensive and include local and regional partners with special attention to upcoming 

developments in Imperial County.  
 

7) Calexico Intermodal Transportation Center (ITC): A new Intermodal Transportation Center in the City of 

Calexico has been part of ICTC’s long range transit planning.  The new Calexico ITC will serve as a regional 

mobility hub that will accommodate bus bays for Imperial Valley Transit in addition to the City of Calexico’s 

private transit operators, taxis and farm labor buses. ICTC received a Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 

federal program fund to complete the environmental and design plans of the new Calexico ITC. ICTC staff is in 

the process of completing the contract award for a consultant firm that will complete the environmental and 

design phase. Currently, ICTC staff is completing the Caltrans award review process with multiple Caltrans’ 

departments. The ICTC Board adopted the agreement with Psomas on September 26, 2018. Environmental phase 

has been completed. Design is expected to be completed March 2022 and Right of Way Acquisition is underway. 

ICTC is exploring funding opportunities to complete the required construction efforts.   

 

8) Calexico East Port of Entry Bridge Widening Project: The Project proposes to widen the bridge over the All-

American Canal at the U.S./Mexico border approximately 0.7 miles south of State Route (SR) 7. The project 

proposes to widen the existing structure by adding four-lanes: Two New Northbound Auto Lanes and Two New 
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Northbound Commercial Vehicle Lanes. In May 2018, Caltrans and ICTC received $3,000,000 from the 

California Transportation Commission and the Trade Corridor Enhancement Program (TCEP) to complete the 

Project Approval and Environmental Document (PA/ED) for the project.  In June 2018, Caltrans completed a 

Project Initiation Document (PID). In Fall of 2018, the PA/ED phase was initiated by Caltrans, technical studies 

for the National Environment Policy Act (NEPA) document under Caltrans as the NEPA lead are in progress and 

is scheduled for completion in May 2020. In December 2018, ICTC was awarded $20 million under the U.S. 

Department of Transportation’s BUILD discretionary grant program to complete the Design-Build construction 

phase. The design portion of the project is near completion. The project initial construction has already begun, 

and construction is anticipated to be completed in 2023. 
 

9) Potential Bus Stop in Calipatria: ICTC has evaluated all of its fixed route service routes to attempt to provide 

service to the east side of Calipatria. Staff conducted time trials as well utilized several types of buses to verify 

buses would not have issues with other existing stops within proposed routes. Potential stops for the area include 

a stop along Commercial Avenue and potentially another stop near Alexandria Street. Staff is proposing to utilize 

its IVC Express route to potentially service the area. ICTC and City staff have begun coordination to implement 

final location and infrastructure associated with the potential bus stop(s). ICTC has begun utilizing the IVC 

Express route to service both bus stops along the east side (intersection of Bonita Place and Commerial Avenue) 

and (intersection of Alexandria Street and Brown Avenue) of Calipatria.  

 
10) Imperial Valley Transit (IVT) FREE FARES PROGRAM: On August 7, 2020, the Imperial County 

Transportation Commission (ICTC) announced the implementation of a Free Fares Program for various 

Imperial Valley Transit (IVT) services. Eligible services include IVT Fixed Route, IVT Circulators (Blue, Green 

and Gold Lines), IVT ACCESS and IVT RIDE (EL Centro, Imperial, Heber, Brawley, Calexico, Westshores). 

All passengers are eligible to benefit from the Free Fares Program. The fares are subsidized by a State of 

California grant and fare contributions to IVT RIDE passengers by the County of Imperial’s Area Agency for the 

Aging (AAA). Unfortunately, The Free Fares Program has nearly expended all grant funds. The Free Fares 

Program will end March 31, 2022. ICTC will begin charging fares for all services beginning April 1, 2022. ICTC 

will continue to pursue grant opportunities to provide free fares at a later time.  

 

11) State Route 98 Widening from Ollie to Rockwood: As part of the Calexico West POE Expansion project, SR-

98 and Cesar Chavez Boulevard were widened and improved to serve the expansion to the west. Caltrans’ SR-

98 work between VV Williams and Ollie Avenue was completed in March 2018, and the Cesar Chavez Blvd. 

Widening was completed in October 2019. Caltrans has completed the design and right of way phase for SR-98 

Widening between Rockwood Avenue and Ollie Avenue. On June 24, 2020, CTC authorized construction 

funding. The total project cost is estimated at $7 million using a combination of 2016 Earmark Repurposing, 

Demonstration, Traffic Congestion Relief, ICTC and local funds. The construction start date was delayed to due 

to environmental impacts and other utility projects in progress within the project area. Construction of the project 

began on August 6, 2021.  
 

 

12) State and Federal Local funding Obligations: Projects programmed in programmed in Federal Fiscal Year 

(FFY) 2019/2020 were fully obligated according to Caltrans Local Assistance. Beginning October 1, 2020, 

agencies can move forward with request for authorization (RFA) for Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ), 

Surface Transportation Block Grant program (STBG) programmed in FFY 2020/2021. Other state funding also 

included in the Federal Transportation Improvement Program (FTIP) include the Active Transportation Program 

(ATP). See complete project list attached. 
 

13) 2018 Trade Corridor Enhancement Program:  The Trade Corridor Enhancement Program (TCEP), created 

by Senate Bill (SB) 1 (Beall, Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017), provides approximately $300 million annually for 

infrastructure improvements on federally designated Trade Corridors of National and Regional Significance, on 

the Primary Freight Network, and along other corridors that have a high volume of freight movement.  ICTC in 

partnership with Caltrans and the San Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG) were successful in 

receiving TCEP funds for Advanced Technology Corridors at the California-Mexico Ports of Entry (POE).  The 

goal project is to implement Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) strategies that will improve border travel 

delays. Some of the ITS strategies will include Bluetooth and Wi-Fi readers to help track vehicle delays, as well 
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as implement changeable message signs on State Routes to inform border travelers of POE delays. Caltrans will 

serve as the implementing agency of this project and has an estimated completion date of early 2020. Caltrans 

has initiated the environmental phase and preliminary design of the project. TCEP funds will be used in 

collaboration with the BUILD grant award for the design and construction phases. ICTC made a request for 

allocation from the California Transportation Commission (CTC) for the $7.5 million for design and construction 

at their June 23, 2021 meeting.  
 

14) State Legislation for Transportation Funding – SB 1 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account 

(RMRA): The following are projected annual revenues of RMRA for the FY 21/22. In addition to the funding 

estimates of RMRA funds listed below, the League of California Cities website and the State Controllers office 

provides additional resources on the various transportation funding and reporting requirements associated with 

transportation funds.  

 

The League of California Cities website provides an overview update of available city and county estimated 

allocations of roadway funding such as RMRA and Highway Users Tax Account (HUTA). The following is a link 

to the League of California Cities website https://www.calcities.org/detail-pages/news/2021/01/27/cal-cities-

and-csac-release-huta-and-rmra-estimates-for-proposed-fy-2021-22-state-budget-29447   

 

The following is the projected annual revenues for FY 2021/2022. All funding recipients are required to submit 

their list of projects in order to be eligible for funding distribution. The following link is the frequently asked 

questions resource for (SB1) RMRA https://sco.ca.gov/aud_road_maintenance_sb1.html  

 

Agency 

RMRA Estimated Amount 

FY 2021-2022 

Brawley $525,382 
Calexico $785,624 
Calipatria $148,015 
El Centro $877,084 
Holtville $122,158 
Imperial $382,419 
Westmorland $45,067 
County of Imperial $9,324,428 

TOTAL $12,210,177* 
 

*Estimate source is from California City Finance website dated May 14, 2021 

http://www.californiacityfinance.com/LSR2105.pdf  
 

15) State Legislation for Transportation Funding – SB 1 2018 Local Partnership Program (LPP): Local 

Partnership Program is comprised of formulaic program and competitive programs.  In FY2017/2018 total 

amount available statewide is $200M and distribution is 50/50 for both formulaic and competitive programs. The 

formulaic program share distributions for the Local Partnership Program were presented at the CTC meeting in 

December 6-7, 2017. The Imperial County received $1,632 of Local Partnership Formulaic Program (LPFP) 

funds in Cycle 1 ($1,076) and Cycle 2 ($556) for a total of $1,632.  

 

List of projects for Imperial County:  
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The following is the link to the 2019 Local Partnership Program guidelines: 

http://catc.ca.gov/programs/sb1/lpp/docs/062719+Amended_LPP%20Guidelines.pdf    

 

16) Partnerships with IVEDC:  

 

• Southern Border Broadband Consortium (SBBC): SBBC continues to work with local stakeholders to 

identify, prioritize and advance broadband infrastructure and improvement projects; facilitate and promote 

broadband education community wide using survey data; work with the Boys and Girls Club of IV and the 

Workforce Development Board to create Digital Literacy Centers throughout Imperial County; and develop 

a preferred scenario for 98% deployment in Imperial County and present to the California Advanced Service 

Fund and the CPUC.  As of February 17, 2022 a total of $109,369.48 have been submitted and approved for 

reimbursement.  The remaining grant balance is $340,630.52 out of the original $450,000 grant award. 

 

• The Brawley Transit Corridor Brownfield Assessment: ICTC in partnership with IVEDC received a U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Brownfields Communitywide Assessment Grant award of 

$300,000 from the Environmental Protection Agency’s Brownfields Assessment Program. This assessment 

is focused along the transit circulator route within the 13-mile Imperial Valley Transit’s (IVTs) Brawley Gold 

Line Transit Route and the Brawley Transit Center that serves as the IVTs North Imperial County transfer 

terminal. The commercial corridors in the target assessment area include over 100 known commercial 

properties and suspected historical gas station sites with known or suspected underground tanks in the target 

area. ICTC is the fiscal agent and has developed an MOU which will define roles and responsibilities (Audits, 

Administration and Project Management) of ICTC and IVEDC. SCS Engineers Tasks include the Quality 

Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) and project management plan as required by EPA. As of February 17, 2022, 

there is a remaining grant balance of $67,922. Of the $67,922, $63,717 is the remaining contract balance 

for SCS Engineers.  

 

Agency Project Name 

LPP Formulaic 

Funds

Local Match Total Cost

Project 

Implementation 

Fiscal Year

Proposed 

CTC 

Programming 

Date 

Holtville

Orchard Road/Cedar 

Avenue 60,000$                                   $                   60,000 120,000$                      2020-2021 Jun-20

El Centro

Dogwood Road from 

Villa Road to 

Commercial Avenue 339,000$                                339,000$                678,000$                      2020-2021 Jun-20

Local Partnership Program (LPP) Programing for FY20/21
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17) Meetings attended on behalf of ICTC: 

• January 26, 2022 – Paratransit Coordination Committee Meeting (PCC) via zoom (attended by staff) 

• January 26, 2022 – Calexico East Port of Entry Meeting with Mexican Port Officials in Mexicali, MX 

• January 26, 2022 – ICTC Commission Meeting via zoom and in person  

• January 27-28, 2022 – CALCOG California Academy for Regional Leaders (CARL) Program via zoom 

attended by staff 

• January 31, 2022 – SCAG Regional Transit TAC 

• February 2, 2022 – ICTC Social Services Transportation Advisory Council (SSTAC) Meeting (via zoom) 

• February 3, 2022 – ICTC Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Meeting via zoom 

• February 3, 2022 – Local Transportation Authority (LTA) Measure D  Local Taxpayer Supervising 

Committee (LTSC) via zoom and in person 

• February 8, 2022 – Long Range Transportation Plan kick-off meeting via zoom (attended by staff) 

• February 8, 2022 - Imperial County Local Transportation Authority Series 2022 - Working Group Call  

• February 9, 2022 – ICTC Management Committee Meeting via zoom  

• February 9, 2022 – California Intercity Bus Study Workshop 

• February 9, 2022 – AB 617 Community Air Protection Program Steering Committee Meeting via zoom 

(attended by staff)  

• February 10, 2022 – Long Range Transportation Plan Debrief Meetings via zoom (attended by staff) 

• February 10-11, 2022 – CALCOG California Academy for Regional Leaders (CARL) Program (via zoom) 

attended by staff 

• February 11, 2022 – Active Transportation Plan Debrief Meeting via zoom (attended by staff)  

• February 11, 2022 – Glamis/UPRR Crossing Feasibility Study follow up meeting via zoom  

• February 15, 2022 – SCAG: Legislative/Communications & Memberships Committee (LCMC) via zoom  

• February 15, 2022 – Self Help Counties Coalition CALSTA Secretary Konove meeting via zoom  

• February 15, 2022 – SR 78/Glamis Working Group Meeting via zoom  

• February 15, 2022 – SCAG & CTC Planning Directors Briefing via zoom  

• February 15-16, 2022 – FTA Region 9 Real Estate Workshop 

• February 18, 2022 – CTC / SCAG CEO's Meeting via zoom  

• Various Weekly Reoccuring Calexico East POE Bridge Widening Project Meetings 
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Agency Project ID Project Name
 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total

Obligation 

Status 
Agency Project ID Project Name

 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total Obligation Status 

Brawley IMP190701

Pedestrian and street improvements (paving of dirt road) 

on Legion Street between State Route 86 and Western 

Avenue 

2019/20 CMAQ 177$     -$       -$         177$        0 0 0 2019/20 CMAQ -$          -$             -$             -$             

5167(044) 2019/20 Agency 23$       -$       -$         23$          2019/20 Agency -$          -$             -$             -$             

2021/22 CMAQ -$         797$    797$        2020/21 CMAQ -$          -$             -$             -$             

2021/22 Agency -$         -$       103$    103$        2020/21 Agency -$          -$             -$             -$             

 Total  1,100$      Total  -$             

Agency Project ID Project Name
 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total

Obligation 

Status 
Agency Project ID Project Name

 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total Obligation Status 

Brawley IMP190702

Construct street improvements (paving of dirt road) along 

Western Avenue between Legion street and Wildcat 

Drive.

2019/20 CMAQ 177$     -$       -$         177$        0 0 0 2020/21 STBG -$          -$             -$             -$             

5167(045) 2019/20 Agency 23$       -$       -$         23$          2020/21 Agency -$          -$             -$             -$             

2021/22 CMAQ -$         -$       784$    784$        -$          -$             -$             -$             

2021/22 Agency -$         -$       102$    102$        -$          -$             -$             -$             

 Total  1,086$      Total  -$             

Agency Project ID Project Name
 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total

Obligation 

Status 
Agency Project ID Project Name

 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total Obligation Status 

Brawley IMP190709
Street Improvement (repavement)  along K street from 

Highway 86 to 8th street.
2019/20 STBG 52$       -$       -$         52$          0 0 0 2020/21 CMAQ -$          -$             -$             -$             

5167(043) 2019/20 Agency 8$         -$       -$         8$            2020/21 Agency -$          -$             -$             -$             

2021/22 STBG -$         -$       370$    370$        2021/22 CMAQ -$          -$             -$             -$             

2021/22 Agency -$         -$       48$      48$          2021/22 Agency -$          -$             -$             -$             

 Total  478$         Total  -$             

Agency Project ID Project Name
 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total

Obligation 

Status 
Agency Project ID Project Name

 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total Obligation Status 

2020/21 STBG -$         -$       -$         -$             2020/21 CMAQ -$          -$             -$             -$             

2020/21 Agency -$         -$       -$         -$             2020/21 Agency -$          -$             -$             -$             

2021/22 STBG -$         -$       -$         -$             2021/22 CMAQ -$          -$             -$             -$             

2021/22 Agency -$         -$       -$         -$             2021/22 Agency -$          -$             -$             -$             

 Total  -$              Total  -$             

Comments: Comments: 

Federal Funded Project Obligation List
 Federal funding Obligations: The following is a list of projects that must submit a Request for Authorization to Caltrans Local Assistance. Projects must obligate (E-76) federal funds in FFY 2021/2022. (Starting October 1, 2021 thru September 30, 2022)

Comments: EPSP. Need to obligate on FFY21/22

Status: end of Jan. the design will be completed. 

Comments: 

Comments: Status of Design and ROW: PE phase will 

have completed by end of February. Award the Design in 

the month of December. 

Comments: 

Comments: Design has been completed as of week of 

12/3/21. Will move with the adv. Of the CON on Dec. 

15th

Comments: 
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Agency Project ID Project Name
 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total

Obligation 

Status 
Agency Project ID Project Name

 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total Obligation Status 

Calexico IMP191001
Weakley Street Improvements between Scaroni Blvd. and 

Portico Blvd. (paving of dirt road).
2019/20 CMAQ 18$       155$  -$         173$        2020/21 STBG -$          -$             -$             

2019/20 Agency 2$         18$    -$         20$          2020/21 Agency -$          -$             -$             

2021/22 CMAQ -$         -$       291$    291$        -$          -$             -$             -$             

2021/22 Agency -$         -$       40$      40$          -$          -$             -$             -$             

 Total  524$         Total  -$             

Agency Project ID Project Name
 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total

Obligation 

Status 
Agency Project ID Project Name

 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total Obligation Status 

2019/20 CMAQ -$       -$         -$             County IMP190713 2020/21 CMAQ -$             -$             -$             

2019/20 Agency -$       -$         -$             2020/21 Agency -$             -$             -$             

2020/21 CMAQ -$         -$       -$             2021/22 CMAQ -$          -$             -$             

2020/21 Agency -$         -$       -$             2021/22 Agency -$          -$             -$             

 Total  -$              Total  -$             

Agency Project ID Project Name
 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total

Obligation 

Status 
Agency Project ID Project Name

 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total Obligation Status 

El Centro 2020/21 STBG -$         -$       2020/21 CMAQ -$          -$             -$             -$             

2020/21 Agency -$         -$       -$             2020/21 Agency -$          -$             -$             -$             

2021/22 STBG -$         -$       -$             2021/22 CMAQ -$          -$             -$             -$             

2021/22 Agency -$         -$       -$             2021/22 Agency -$          -$             -$             -$             

 Total  -$              Total  -$             

Comments: Comments: 

Federal Funded Project Obligation List
 Federal funding Obligations: The following is a list of projects that must submit a Request for Authorization to Caltrans Local Assistance. Projects must obligate (E-76) federal funds in FFY 2021/2022. (Starting October 1, 2021 thru September 30, 2022)

Comments: EPSP- Need to obligate in FFY 21/22.

Engineering and Right-of-way Phase. 

Comments: 

Comments: Comments: 
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Agency Project ID Project Name
 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total

Obligation 

Status 
Agency Project ID Project Name

 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total Obligation Status 

El Centro IMP190704

Interconnect and synchronize existing interconnected 

signal lights along Dogwood Avenue and along 8th street 

to the City of El Centro's master computer.

2019/20 CMAQ 48$       -$       -$         48$          2020/21 CMAQ -$             -$             -$             

2019/20 Agency 7$         -$       -$         7$            2020/21 Agency -$             -$             -$             

2020/21 CMAQ -$         -$       343$    343$        2021/22 CMAQ -$          -$             -$             

2020/21 Agency -$         -$       45$      45$          2021/22 Agency -$          -$             -$             

 Total  443$         Total  -$             

Agency Project ID Project Name
 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total

Obligation 

Status 
Agency Project ID Project Name

 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total Obligation Status 

El Centro IMP190710

Imperial Avenue Extension South - new roadway from I-8 

to McCabe Road. Phase 2 includes 2 lanes on Imperial 

Avenue from Wake Avenue to Danenberg Drive; and 2 

new lanes on Danenberg Drive from the westerly 

extension of Danenberg Drive towards Imperial Avenue.

2020/21 STBG -$         -$       715$    715$        2020/21 Agency -$          -$             -$             -$             

2020/21 Agency -$         -$       93$      93$          2020/21 Agency -$          -$             -$             -$             

2021/22 STBG -$         -$       2,200$ 2,200$     2021/22 CMAQ -$          -$             -$             -$             

2021/22 Agency -$         -$       285$    285$        2021/22 Agency -$          -$             -$             -$             

 Total  3,293$      Total  -$             

Federal Funded Project Obligation List
 Federal funding Obligations: The following is a list of projects that must submit a Request for Authorization to Caltrans Local Assistance. Projects must obligate (E-76) federal funds in FFY 2021/2022. (Starting October 1, 2021 thru September 30, 2022)

E-76 Obligated
Comments: Comments: 

E-76 Obligated

Comments: Comments: 
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Agency Project ID Project Name
 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total

Obligation 

Status 
Agency Project ID Project Name

 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total Obligation Status 

Holtiville IMP190705
Cedar Avenue sidewalk improvements from 4th street to 

5th street.
2019/20 CMAQ 17$       -$       -$         17$          2019/20 CMAQ -$          -$             -$             -$             

2019/20 Agency 3$         -$       -$         3$            2019/20 Agency -$          -$             -$             -$             

2020/21 CMAQ -$         -$       193$    193$        2020/21 CMAQ -$          -$             -$             -$             

2020/21 Agency -$         -$       25$      25$          2020/21 Agency -$          -$             -$             -$             

 Total  238$         Total  -$             

Agency Project ID Project Name
 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total

Obligation 

Status 
Agency Project ID Project Name

 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total Obligation Status 

2019/20 CMAQ -$         -$             -$          -$             

2019/20 Agency -$         -$             2020/21 -$          -$             -$             

2020/21 CMAQ -$         -$       -$             -$          -$             -$             -$             

2020/21 Agency -$         -$       -$             -$          -$             -$             -$             

 Total  -$              Total  -$             

 Federal funding Obligations: The following is a list of projects that must submit a Request for Authorization to Caltrans Local Assistance. Projects must obligate (E-76) federal funds in FFY 2021/2022. (Starting October 1, 2021 thru September 30, 2022)

Federal Funded Project Obligation List

Comments: 

Comments: 

Comments: 

Comments: 

E-76
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Agency Project ID Project Name
 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total

Obligation 

Status 
Agency Project ID Project Name

 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total Obligation Status 

Imperial IMP190301
2nd Street Rehabilitation & Reconstruction from Old SR-

86 to P Street.
2020/21 STBG -$         -$       1,841$ 1,841$     2020/21 STBG -$          -$             -$             -$             

2020/21 Agency -$         -$       1,181$ 1,181$     2020/21 Agency -$          -$             -$             -$             

-$         -$       -$         -$             -$          -$             -$             -$             

-$         -$       -$         -$             -$          -$             -$             -$             

 Total  3,022$      Total  -$             

Comments: 

Federal Funded Project Obligation List
 Federal funding Obligations: The following is a list of projects that must submit a Request for Authorization to Caltrans Local Assistance. Projects must obligate (E-76) federal funds in FFY 2021/2022. (Starting October 1, 2021 thru September 30, 2022)

60% Design 0Comments: Construction phase is on on going. 
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Agency Project ID Project Name
 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total

Obligation 

Status 
Agency Project ID Project Name

 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total Obligation Status 

County IMP170101

The project consist in providing improvements such as 

sidewalks, driveways, in-fill paving to accommodate a 

bike lane along Rio Vista Street from San Diego Avenue 

to Holt Avenue in the community of Seeley.

Prior CMAQ 198$     -$       -$         198$        County IMP190713

The project consist  in providing 

improvements on Main Street such as 

widening of existing road to add bike 

lane, sidewalks, shoulder, curb and 

gutter from Highway 111 to Memphis 

Avenue in Niland.

2020/21 CMAQ 107$     -$             -$             107$        

Prior Agency 26$       -$       -$         26$          2020/21 Agency 14$       -$             -$             14$          

2021/22 CMAQ -$         -$       792$    792$        2021/22 CMAQ -$          -$             165$        165$        

2021/22 Agency -$         -$       103$    103$        2021/22 Agency -$          -$             916$        916$        

 Total  1,119$      Total  1,202$     

Agency Project ID Project Name
 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total

Obligation 

Status 
Agency Project ID Project Name

 Fiscal 

Year 

Funding 

Type
PE ROW CON Total Obligation Status 

County IMP190716
Sidewalk improvements on Heffernan Avenue from 14th 

street to 11th street.
2019/20 ATP 87$       -$       -$         87$          County IMP190715

Aten Road Bicycle Path Improvements 

from Dogwood Road to Imperial Valley 

College in Imperial County.

2019/20 ATP 71$       -$             -$             71$          

2019/20 Agency 13$       -$       -$         13$          2019/20 Agency 24$       -$             -$             24$          

2020/21 ATP -$         44$    -$         44$          2020/21 ATP -$          -$             215$        215$        

2020/21 Agency -$         6$      -$         6$            2020/21 Agency -$          -$             133$        133$        

2021/22 ATP -$         -$       511$    511$        -$             

2021/22 Agency -$         -$       66$      66$          -$             

 Total  727$         Total  443$        

Federal and State Funded Project Obligation List
 Federal funding Obligations: The following is a list of projects that must submit a Request for Authorization to Caltrans Local Assistance. Projects must obligate (E-76) federal funds in FFY 2021/2022. (Starting October 1, 2021 thru September 30, 2022) 

State Funded Allocations: The following is a list of projects that must submit a Requet for Allocation to Caltrans Local Assistance for State approval during FY 2021/2022(Starting July 1, 2021 thru June 30, 2022)

Comments: Pending approval of contract Change order. Comments: PE received E-76, 30% 

design complete. Pending CON RFA in 

FFY21/22.

Comments: They are on the Design Phase. Comments: Extension was requested. 

Requesting a 12-month extension. 

Allocation Request must be approved by 

CTC no later than 12/31/2021.

37



 
 

 
 

Memorandum	

Date: March 9th, 2022 

To: ICTC Management Committee Meeting 

From: David Salgado, Regional Affairs Officer (RAO) 

Re: Southern California Association of Government’s (SCAG) Report 

   
The following is a summary of the SCAG Executive Director’s Report and/or Federal and State Legislature Staff Report for 
the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s Management Committee meeting for the month of March 2022.  
 
1. 2022 SCAG Regional Conference and General Assembly May 4-6, 2022: On May 4-6, local 

leaders from throughout Southern California will convene for SCAG’s 57th annual Regional 
Conference and General Assembly at the JW Marriott Desert Springs Resort & Spa in Palm Desert, 
CA. This three-day conference will bring together state and local elected officials, CEOs, business and 
civic leaders, transportation and environmental stakeholders, local government staff, and others. 

 
2. 2022 SCAG Scholarship Program: Applications are now available for the 2022 SCAG Scholarship 

Program! The SCAG Scholarship Program offers a $4,000 scholarship award for seven high school 
seniors or community college students from the SCAG region (and potentially two additional 
scholarship awards that are not tied to a specific county but may be awarded at the Regional Council’s 
discretion) and the opportunity to meet with elected officials and practicing planners to learn more 
about careers in public service. 
 
To be eligible for the scholarship, students must be a resident within the SCAG region, enrolled as a   
high school senior or community college student, have at least a 3.0 GPA and be eligible to work in 
the United States. Applicants must complete an application form and submit an essay, two letters of 
recommendation, and a current transcript. All materials must be submitted by Friday, April 1. 
For more information on both opportunities, visit scag.ca.gov/students. 
 

3. SCAG ToolBox Tuesday: Regional Data Platform & Local Data Exchange Process Tuesday, 
March 15, 1 – 2:30 p.m. In the next Toolbox Tuesday session, join SCAG and Esri for a walkthrough 
of the newly launched Regional Data Platform and the Local Data Exchange process. 
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SCAG's Regional Data Platform is a revolutionary system for collaborative data sharing, analysis, 
engagement to facilitate better planning at all levels. The platform catalyzes spatial data and 
technology in the hands of local jurisdictions to enhance robust, transparent, and collaborative 
community planning. This includes the Local Data Exchange system for supporting authoritative 
municipal data via a two-way data exchange between SCAG and local jurisdictions. 
 
The Regional Data Platform incorporates publicly available data, applications and tools for planning 
such as SoCal Atlas and Housing Element Parcel Tool, as well as Esri software licenses and tools for 
local jurisdictions like ArcGIS Urban and General Plan Update site and survey templates. 
 

4. SCAG Housing Policy Leadership Academy: With support from the State’s Regional Early Action 
Planning (REAP) grant program and to support the region’s efforts in response to recent state 
investments in planning to accelerate housing production and meet the goals of the Regional Housing 
Needs Allocation (RHNA), SCAG has developed a series of trainings that will support elected 
officials, advocates, and interested stakeholders in moving forward a pro-housing development 
agenda. 
 
The SCAG Housing Policy Leadership Academy (SCAG-HPLA) offers a 10-session online training 
for emerging and established community leaders who want to better understand how to advance policy 
solutions to increase the supply and availability of affordable housing. The course brings together 
people from different backgrounds and disciplines in monthly sessions to examine issues and solutions 
from multiple perspectives and apply their learning to current housing policy challenges. Sessions 
explore the relationship between policy, planning, and housing development with a focus on how 
different policy solutions shape both the physical and social landscape and capacity to produce housing 
for all.  
 
The course is grounded in the HPLA 5Ps framework, which provides a foundation for examining the 
physical and social aspects of a healthy housing ecosystem. 

 
5. SCAG Regional Data Platform (RDP):  The Regional Data Platform will standardize regionally 

significant datasets, provide opportunities for local partners to update their data in real-time, and draw 
insights from local trends. More specifically, it will be an online tool for SCAG and local jurisdictions 
to access data necessary for local general plan development and general decision making by  
monitoring transportation, land development trends, housing and economic growth, and sustainability 
conditions. The platform will also feature a data-driven collaboration hub for local jurisdictions to 
engage with stakeholders for individual projects, such as local and regional land use planning, active 
transportation planning, greenhouse gas reduction strategies and development impact assessments. 
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Moving beyond just technology, this platform will help government engage with data in a simpler 
way, allowing the interpretation of information into actionable insights and knowledge, and provide a 
digital venue for local agencies to engage with their residents using data as a medium. 

 
Process wise, SCAG will enable users to improve the platform through data revision and insight 
sharing, empower local partners to use the platform for their own initiatives (thereby spotlighting best 
practices), and ultimately foster continuous experimentation at the local level by helping jurisdictions 
understand how their plans could impact the region’s most significant challenges – transportation, 
jobs, housing, and sustainability. 
 

 Housing Element Parcel Tool (HELPR): The HELPR tool is a readily available mapping 
and data tool available to SCAG member agencies and partners. The tool drills down on parcel 
specific data and demographics which will support the development of housing plans and 
general plan updates.  
 

 Local Information Services Team (LIST): SCAG has created the “Local Information 
Services Team” to support the roll out of the Regional Data Platform (RDP) and other housing 
and data support needs.  

 
6. SCAG Aerial Imagery Project 2020-21 Update: The flyovers have been completed and an 

introductory meeting was held with the vendor, EagleView. The meeting was offered to member 
jurisdictions and stakeholders to introduce some of the new products provided as a part of the project, 
which includes high resolution imagery, ortho imagery and other products. SCAG is working with the 
county to finalize an MOU prior to requesting local contributions for supporting the program.  
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
February 2022

SCAG HOSTS SECOND CONVENING OF REGIONAL ADVANCE MITIGATION PLANNING ADVISORY TASK GROUP
SCAG convened the second meeting of the Regional Advance Mitigation Planning Advisory Task Group (RAMP-ATG) on 
Friday, Jan. 28. The meeting covered research and a draft outline of the RAMP white paper, presentations on existing 
regional advance mitigation programs such as the Freeway Environmental Mitigation Program from the Orange County 
Transportation Authority (OCTA) and the Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan from the 
Riverside Conservation Authority (RCA), and a summary of feedback shared from interviews with county transportation 
commissions on SCAG’s RAMP program.

The third meeting will be held on Friday, Feb. 18, from 3 – 5 p.m. via Zoom with additional information on existing regional 
advance mitigation programs and initial recommendations on establishing a policy framework for advance mitigation. All 
meetings are open to the public and stakeholders are encouraged to submit public comment. Please visit https://scag.
ca.gov/ramp-atg for more information. 

SAVE THE DATE! 57TH REGIONAL CONFERENCE & GENERAL ASSEMBLY 
For the first time in three years, we will be convening in person for the 57th Regional Conference & General Assembly 
on May 5–6 at the JW Marriott Desert Springs Resort & Spa in Palm Desert, Calif. Mark your calendars to join Southern 
California’s most influential leaders, innovators and policymakers for collaborative, solution-oriented discussions on 
fostering change and addressing challenges in our communities.

Registration, which will be free for elected officials and city managers in the region, will be opening soon — stay tuned! 
You can find the latest details on the event webpage at scag.ca.gov/ga2022. To learn more about opportunities for 
sponsorship of the event, contact Houston Laney at laney@scag.ca.gov.

TWO OPPORTUNITIES FOR STUDENTS IN THE SCAG REGION 
2022 STUDENT SHOWCASE 

The 2022 Student Showcase is a storymapping competition that challenges students to think innovatively and compete 
for cash prizes in two award categories: “Best in Show” and “Audience Awards.” Student participants are invited to 
conceptualize, create, and submit planning themed ArcGIS StoryMaps using SCAG’s open data. This is a meaningful 
way to tell a story or provide insight, showcase plans and projects, engage supporters and stakeholders, illustrate the 
possibilities of data, and highlight the usefulness of open data at the regional level.

Students are instructed to submit abstracts of their projects by Tuesday, Feb. 22, and if selected, SCAG will request an 
ArcGIS StoryMap to be submitted. In all, there will be a total of $6,000 awarded.

2022 SCAG SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM 

Applications are now available for the 2022 SCAG Scholarship Program! The SCAG Scholarship Program offers a $4,000 
scholarship award for seven high school seniors or community college students from the SCAG region (and potentially 
two additional scholarship awards that are not tied to a specific county but may be awarded at the Regional Council’s 
discretion) and the opportunity to meet with elected officials and practicing planners to learn more about careers in public 
service.

To be eligible for the scholarship, students must be a resident within the SCAG region, enrolled as a high school senior or 
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community college student, have at least a 3.0 GPA and be eligible to work in the United States. Applicants must complete 
an application form and submit an essay, two letters of recommendation, and a current transcript. All materials must be 
submitted by Friday, April 1.

For more information on both opportunities, please visit scag.ca.gov/students. 

LAST MILE FREIGHT PROGRAM UPDATE
The Mobile Source Air Pollution Reduction Review Committee approved $6.75 million in Last Mile Freight Program Phase 
1 contingency projects at their meeting on Jan. 20. These projects will be considered for approval at the SCAG Regional 
Council meeting on Feb. 4. With these actions, SCAG will now be implementing a total of $16.75 million in near-zero 
and zero emissions medium- and heavy-duty vehicles and supporting infrastructure projects over the next few years 
throughout the six-county region. SCAG remains committed to working with key public and private partners to improve air 
quality benefits for local communities through the advancement of innovative technologies.

SUBREGIONAL PARTNERS LISTENING SESSIONS
SCAG hosted two listening sessions with subregional executive directors that allowed SCAG to learn more about 
subregional priorities and begin identifying potential opportunities for partnership, including those that would fall under 
the Regional Early Action Planning Grant of 2021 (REAP 2.0). The sessions also provided an opportunity for the subregions 
to learn from each other and to share best practices and ideas for new initiatives to implement Connect SoCal. SCAG is 
currently compiling feedback from the discussions to share during the February Subregional Executive Directors meeting.

JOINT MEETING WITH KERN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
SCAG elected and staff leadership joined members of the Kern Council of Governments for a meeting to discuss topics 
of mutual interest, areas of cooperation, transportation planning efforts, legislative advocacy, and other activities that 
impact both sides of their shared county lines. This meeting is part of SCAG’s ongoing commitment to collaboration with 
neighboring regions.

GO HUMAN UPDATE
SCAG’S GO HUMAN CAMPAIGN RECEIVES CALTRANS EXCELLENCE IN TRANSPORTATION AWARD

SCAG’s Go Human campaign was recognized by the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) with an 
Excellence in Transportation award for the project “From Pop Up to Permanent: A Model for Community-Centered 
Public Engagement.” The award recognizes SCAG’s Go Human efforts across the region to foster champions for active 
transportation safety at the local level through a variety of strategies. One key strategy is the Kit of Parts, an engagement 
tool to temporarily demonstrate potential and planned street design treatments and safety infrastructure that encourage 
the use of streets as public space. A full list of winning projects, summaries, and photos can be accessed here:  
https://dot.ca.gov/programs/public-affairs/eit-awards.

SCAG’S GO HUMAN CAMPAIGN TEAMED UP WITH SUNLINE TRANSIT TO SHOWCASE SAFETY MESSAGING 
ACROSS COACHELLA VALLEY 

Recognizing that every commuter is a pedestrian first, SCAG’s Go Human campaign teamed up with SunLine Transit to 
showcase safety messaging in the Coachella Valley, running through May 2022. Displayed on three buses that are part of 
the hydrogen fuel cell fleet, the “SunLine x Go Human” bus wraps represent a collaboration between years-long efforts to 
promote zero-emission transportation and traffic safety messaging. Co-branded safety messaging materials are one of Go 
Human’s no-cost resources. Learn more about the collaboration in this news article and request safety advertisements on 
the SCAG website.
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LADOT DEMONSTRATION AT MAGNOLIA AVENUE ELEMENTARY SECURES FUNDING, INSTALLATION PLANNED 

The Los Angeles Department of Transportation (LADOT), with support from SCAG’s Go Human campaign, hosted a Safe 
Routes to School pop-up demonstration event on Walk to School Day/Clean Air Day on Oct. 6, 2021, at Magnolia Avenue 
Elementary School. The demonstration included temporary safety design improvements, including “School Streets” 
(closing the street adjacent to the school to vehicle traffic, creating a pedestrian plaza), improved safety valet, bulb outs, 
and other features alongside engaging programming activities, feedback opportunities, and air quality monitoring. The 
goal of the event was to serve as a trial and to solicit community input on street improvements. The Office of Council 
District 1 has directed CRA/LA bond proceeds to the implementation of this project, scheduled for installation in June 
2022. A video of the project can be accessed here. 

WTS-IE NAMES MUSCOY MOTHER & DAUGHTER DUO AND GO HUMAN CHAMPIONS RECIPIENTS OF THE 
WOMAN OF THE YEAR AWARD

For the first time, a mother and daughter duo were awarded the Woman of the Year Award by the WTS–Inland Empire 
Chapter. Rosa and Angela Loera were recognized for their tremendous commitment to advancing transportation in 
the region. Their leadership was integral in securing a $1.88 million infrastructure grant through the state’s Active 
Transportation Program (ATP) Cycle 5 for the Muscoy Area Safe Routes to School Pedestrian Improvements Project. 
In partnership with Majority Leader Eloise Gomez Reyes, the Sidewalks for Muscoy Coalition, Safe Routes Partnership, 
community members and numerous other partners, Rosa and Angela led essential community engagement efforts, 
rallying their community as they built temporary crosswalks, bus shelters, and curb extensions (in part with mini-grant 
funding from SCAG’s Go Human campaign). Their efforts to conduct engagement and secure funding have and will 
continue to be transformative for the Inland Empire. As alumni of Go Human’s Community Safety Ambassador Program, 
SCAG congratulates these champions.

SCAG HOSTS ‘TOOLBOX TUESDAY’ TECHNICAL WORKSHOP ON EQUITY TOOL DEVELOPMENT
SCAG’s Toolbox Tuesday trainings provide a range of practical skills and knowledge for local planners, including training in 
the use of computer-based tools and education in practical approaches to timely planning issues. On Jan. 25, more than 
100 participants joined SCAG for a session on the process of how to use and develop equity tools for local jurisdictions. 
Speakers from SCAG and Metro discussed how equity tools are designed to integrate the explicit consideration of equity 
in decisions, including policies, practices, programs, and budgets. For more information, please access the recording of 
the training session and presentation materials on the SCAG website. Please register here for the next Toolbox Tuesday 
training on “SB 379 Compliance: Resources for Local Jurisdictions,” which will take place on Feb. 15. 

SUNLINE TRANSIT HYDROGEN FUEL CELL BUS WORKSHOP
On Jan. 20, I participated in a fuel cell bus workshop hosted by Sunline Transit, which highlighted their hydrogen fuel 
cell transit fleet and fueling facilities to elected officials, regional and state decision makers, and transit agency board 
members. The facilities tour and afternoon workshop will educate participants about the benefits of fuel cell electric 
buses as California and the region continues to collaborate on meeting the state’s mandated greenhouse gas reduction 
targets through clean fleet deployment strategies. Sunline Transit took the opportunity to highlight the SCAG Go Human-
wrapped “zero-emission” hydrogen fuel cell bus at their satellite liquid hydrogen fueling station in Indio as a part of the 
morning Tour. As part of the workshop, I provided opening remarks to kick of the workshop portion of the program and 
highlighted the partnership and ongoing efforts the region is making to meet the California Air Resources Board’s clean 
fleet requirements.

43

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1HvmPxHsssAXSWvXVXavuoGlSJO2EyRnK/view
https://scag.ca.gov/toolbox-tuesday
https://scag.ca.gov/toolbox-tuesday-online-training-materials
https://scag.ca.gov/post/sb-379-compliance-resources-local-jurisdictions


State of California California State Transportation Agency 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

“Provide a safe and reliable transportation network that serves all people and respects the environment” 

   
 

To: ICTC Management Committee Date: March 2022 
  
 

From: GUSTAVO DALLARDA 
Caltrans District 11 Director 
 

Subject: DISTRICT DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

CONSTRUCTION 

1. I-8/Imperial Avenue Interchange:  The project includes installing two ramps 
that will provide direct access to southbound Imperial Avenue which will 
provide connectivity to southern El Centro.  The interchange was opened to 
traffic on December 21st. The community identifier installation was completed 
on February 8. 

   

The contractor will continue with plant establishment and close out activities 
through 2023.                                                                             
https://dot.ca.gov/caltrans-near-me/district-11/current-projects/i8-imp-interchange                                                              

2. SR-98 Widening Project:  As part of the Calexico West POE Expansion project, 
SR-98 and Cesar Chavez Boulevard were widened and improved to serve the 
expansion to the west.  SR-98 work between VV Williams and Ollie Avenue was 
completed in March 2018, and the Cesar Chavez Blvd. widening was 
completed in October 2019 by the City of Calexico.  Construction for stage 1 
of the SR-98 widening between Rockwood Avenue and Ollie Avenue is 
underway. Stage 2 is expected to start in March 2022.  The project is expected 
to be substantially completed and open to traffic in late 2022. The total 
project cost is estimated at $8.2 million. 
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3. SR-111 Niland Geyser/Mud Pot:  The SR-111 Niland Geyser/Mud Pot continues 
to be active.  The caldera is approximately 9 feet from the SR-111 edge of 
traveled way, another smaller caldera recently appeared a few feet to the 
north-east of the original and is active. Water from the Mud Pot continues 
free-flowing through the subsurface drainage installed in 2019.  The original 
temporary detour road was opened to traffic in August of 2020.  Due to the 
Mud Pot’s unpredictable change in direction, a revised detour was required. 
The revised detour was completed on April 30, 2021.  The detour will remain in 
place as the mud pot moves beyond the original freeway. 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Ek1buV2HA68 

PROJECT DELIVERY 

1. SR-186 All-American Canal Bridge:  This project proposes to construct a new 
bridge over the All-American Canal (AAC).  The new bridge will improve 
safety and better facilitate international and interregional movement of 
people, goods and services. A 2019 feasibility study proposed 8 alternatives 
including a no-build option.  The following stakeholders have been identified, 
Fort Yuma Quechan Indian Tribe, US BIA, US BOR, IID, International Boundary 
and Water Commission, County of Imperial, Union Pacific Railroad and US 
GSA. Project Milestones: Project Approval/Environmental Clearance 6/2024. 
The Anticipated funding fiscal year for construction is 2025/26. 

MAINTENANCE AND TRAFFIC OPERATIONS 

All Imperial County Crews – Litter control 1st and 3rd Thursday of the month. 
 

1. El Centro Traveled Way Crew – Sweeping I-8/SR111, lateral support SR111, 
crack sealing on SR86 

                                 
         

2. El Centro Functional/Landscape – Sign/landscape maintenance, chemical 
control SR86, memorial sign installation SR111. 
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3. Midway Traveled Way Crew – Sweeping on I-8, crack sealing SR115 

                
 

4. Brawley Traveled Way Crew – Sweeping, crack sealing SR86 

           
 

5. SR-86/Customs & Border Protection Checkpoint Expansion:  ICTC received 
confirmation from Customs & Border Protection (CBP) HQ that they will move 
forward with the original canopy design similar to the I-8 Pine Valley 
checkpoint. Caltrans has reviewed the 65% plan set and provided comments 
to ICTC’s consultant, AECOM, in late November 2021. The environmental 
studies are being prepared by AECOM and will soon be sent for review.  
Caltrans will assist ICTC in coordinating upcoming meetings. 

An environmental document as well all other appropriate studies will be 
needed to finalize the project.  A series of permits will be required for existing 
traffic control at the checkpoint, for the inspection operations and equipment 
within the facility, and for a temporary checkpoint while the project is in 
construction.  A new Freeway Maintenance Agreement will be required for 
the portion of the existing canopy that is within Caltrans ROW. 

PLANNING AND LOCAL ASSISTANCE 

1. District 11 Active Transportation Plan:  The D11 CAT Plan survey period has 
ended. Caltrans will begin determining the location-based needs and 
compile a needs list over the next months. The District 11 CAT Plan is 
scheduled for completion in summer 2022.  For more information please visit: 
https://www.catplan.org/district-11  

2. Project Study Report:  Forrester Road Improvements:  This study will propose 
improvements to Forrester Road from I-8 to the SR 78 intersection in the City of 
Westmorland.  This is a critical goods movement corridor that handles a high 
volume of interregional and local agricultural trucks and anticipated volumes 
will continue to increase.  Caltrans and ICTC are preparing a PSR 
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spearheaded by a Technical Working Group (TWG) that includes the County 
of Imperial, the Imperial Irrigation District (IID), and the cities of El Centro, 
Westmorland, Imperial, and Brawley.  To address the needs of this corridor, 
likely improvements will include shoulder widening, passing lanes, intersection 
improvements, multimodal elements, and a bypass to the city of 
Westmorland.   

3. Local Assistance:   

California Transportation Commission (CTC) Allocation Requests 

Please review the attached schedule of deadlines to send requests for 
California Transportation Commission (CTC) allocation at the May 18-19, 2022 
CTC meeting. Caltrans District 11 must receive all documents at least two 
months prior to the preferred CTC meeting date. Friday, March 18, 2022 is the 
deadline for the May 18-19, 2022 CTC meeting. 

Title VI Nondiscrimination Program 

Local agencies must comply with all Title VI requirements – LAPM Section 9.2, 
Title VI compliance is subject to review at any time. 

www.dot.ca.gov/programs/local-assistance/guidance-and-oversight/title-vi  

RELINQUISHMENTS 

1. SR-86 from SR-111 to Countryside Dr, West Ralph Rd to Calle Estrella, and east 
of Brandt Rd to SR-78. Relinquishment to County of Imperial, estimated 
completion 2026. (#11 on Status Map) 

 
2. SR-86 from Countryside Dr to Treshill Rd. Relinquishment to City of El Centro, 

estimated completion 2026. (#12 on Status Map) 
 
3. SR-111 from 2nd St to SR-98. Relinquishment to City of Calexico, estimated 

completion 2024. (#13 on Status Map) 
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2022 PREPARATION SCHEDULE
CALIFORNIA TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION (CTC) MEETINGS

AGENDA ITEM(S) DUE DATES
Prepared by:

OFFICE OF CTC LIAISON
DIVISION OF FINANCIAL PROGRAMMING

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

As of:
August 2021

Date and 10:00 AM 10:00 AM 5:00 PM 10:00AM 10:00 AM
Location: District & CTC HQ Divisions Email to HQ 

Budgets
Email to CTC 

Liaison
Email to CTC Liaison 

OCTCL Email: 
CTCLiaison@dot.ca.gov

Jan 26-27 - Sacramento Mon, Nov 29, 21 Mon, Dec 6, 21 Fri, Dec 10, '21 Fri, Dec 17, '21 Fri, Dec 17, '21

Mar 16-17 - San Diego Tue, Jan 18, 22 Mon, Jan 24, 22 Mon, Jan 31, '22 Wed, Feb 9, '22 Thu, Feb 10, '22

May 18-19 -Central Valley Mon, Mar 21, 22 Mon, Mar 28, 22 Mon, Apr 4, '22 Wed, Apr 13, '22 Thu, Apr 14, '22

June 29-30 - Sacramento Mon, May 2, 22 Mon, May 9, 22 Mon, May 16, '22 Wed, May 25, '22 Thu, May 26, '22

Aug 17-18 - Bay Area Mon, Jun 20, 22 Mon, Jun 27, 22 Tue, Jul 5, '22 Wed, Jul 13, '22 Thu, Jul 14, '22

Oct 12-13 - Santa Barbara Mon, Aug 15, 22 Mon, Aug 22, 22 Mon, Aug 29, '22 Wed, Sep 7, '22 Thu, Sep 8, '22

Dec 7-8 - Riverside Mon, Oct 10, 22 Mon, Oct 17, 22 Mon, Oct 24, '22 Wed, Nov 2, '22 Thu, Nov 3, '22

* No Scheduled Meeting in:  February, April, July, September and November Moved - Christmas                                                          
Moved - July 4 

Moved - Christmas Moved - Christmas

2022                                           
California Transportation 

Commission
 (CTC)

Meeting Schedule                                                                                                         

Local Agency 
Submits Off System 

Funds Requests, 
Program 

Amendments, and 
Time Extensions to 
Caltrans Districts

District 
Submits         

Off System and                  
On System

 Requests to HQ 
Divisions

HQ Divisions 
Submit Final Off 
System and On 

System Requests 
to Budgets 

Final                             
Agenda 

Language
Due From HQ 

Divisions to
Office of CTC 

Liaison

Final Book Items 
Due from HQ 
Divisions to 

Office of CTC 
Liaison
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Date:01/19/2022

STATUS OF TRANSPORTATION  PROJECTS

  :Project funded by Senate Bill 1

Abbreviations:

GSA: General Services Administration

POE: Port of Entry

0 10 205

Miles

I

1. SR-186/I-8 Quechan Interchange Improvements*
Complete Dec 2022

2. SR-186 All-American Canal Bridge
Complete Mar 2023

3A.  SR-86 USBP Checkpoint Canopy*
Complete July 2022

3B.  SR-86 USBP Checkpoint Canopy*
Complete July 2022

4. I-8 Colorado River Viaduct
Complete April 2021; Begin Construction September 2022

5. SR-111 Pavement Rehabilitation, Border to SR-98 
Complete Nov 2020.  Begin Construction April 2022

6. Bridge Rehab Projects on I-8 and SR-78
Ready to List Spring 2022

7. Calexico East POE Bridge Widening
Design/Build Begin Mar 2021; Complete June 2023

8. SR-86/Dogwood Road Intersection Improvements County Permit* 
Complete Oct 2022

9. I-8/Imperial Ave Interchange Improvements
Open to Traffic Dec 2021; Complete May 2023

10. SR-98 Widening Phase 1C Ollie Ave to Rockwood Ave 
Complete Dec 2022

11. SR-86 Relinquishment to County of Imperial
Date Estimate 2026

12. SR-86 Relinquishment to City of El Centro
Date Estimate 2026

13. SR-111 Relinquishment from 2nd St to SR-98 to City of Calexico
Date Estimate 2024

ENVIRONMENTAL

DESIGN

CONSTRUCTION

RELINQUISHMENT

* The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) is a
partner in this study/projects, although not the lead agency.

Environmental

Design

Construction

Relinquishment
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A. TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT (TDA) AND 
PROGRAM FISCAL AUDITS  

 

 1. RECEIVE AND FILE THE TDA AND OTHER  

  PROGRAM FISCAL AUDITS FOR THE ICTC FOR 
 FY  2020-2021 

 2. DIRECT STAFF TO TRANSMIT THE FISCAL  

  AUDITS TO THE STATE CONTROLLER’S OFFICE  
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1503 N. IMPERIAL AVE., SUITE 104 
EL CENTRO, CA  92243-2875 

PHONE: (760) 592-4494 

FAX: (760) 592-4410 

March 4, 2022           
 

 

 

ICTC Management Committee 

Imperial County Transportation Commission 

1503 N. Imperial Avenue, Suite 104 

El Centro, CA  92243 
  

 

 SUBJECT: Transportation Development Act (TDA) and Program Fiscal Audits for FY 2020-21 

 

 

Dear Committee Members: 

 

As required by the State of California, the Commission must conduct independent fiscal audits of its own 

financial activities on an annual basis. Attached, please find the following program financial audits and 

reports for FY 2020-21, performed by the CPA firm, The Pun Group: 

 

• Transportation Development Act – receipt and allocation by ICTC of ¼ cent retail sales tax under 

Articles 8c, 8e and Article 3 under the State TDA, for transit programs and services (#7076001) 

• State Transit Assistance – receipt and allocation of funding under the State Transit Assistance (STA) 

Program, the Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement, and Service Enhancement 

Account Program (PTMISEA), State of Good Repair (SGR), the California Transit Security Grant 

Program (CTGSP) and the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (#7079001,7481001,7482001, 

7553001) 

• Regional Transit Planning and Programs – receipt and allocation of funding by ICTC for programs 

and services including transit service contracts, grants, project consultants and program staffing 

(#7416001) 

• Regional Planning and Programming – receipt and allocation of funding by ICTC for planning 

programs and services including long- and short-range highway, motorized and non-motorized 

projects, call for projects, project consultants and program staffing (#7417001) 

• Regional Collaboration – receipt and allocation of funding by ICTC for various regional projects 

whereby ICTC is the fiscal agent, including the Brownfield assessments and Broadband deployment 

grants with the Imperial Valley Economic Development Corp (IVEDC) (#7577001) 

• SB325 report for the State Controller’s Office 

• Single Audit for Federal Funds 

 
The audit team and staff will be presenting this item. 
 

 

 

CITIES OF BRAWLEY, CALEXICO, CALIPATRIA, EL CENTRO, HOLTVILLE, IMPERIAL, WESTMORLAND, 

IMPERIAL IRRIGATION DISTRICT AND COUNTY OF IMPERIAL 
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ICTC Management Committee  Page 2 March 4, 2022 

Imperial County Transportation Commission 

It is requested that the ICTC Management Committee forward this item to the Commission for their review 

and approval after public comment, if any:  

1. Receive and file the Transportation Development Act and other program fiscal audits for the
Imperial County Transportation Commission, for FY 2020-21.

2. Direct staff to transmit the fiscal audits to the State Controller’s Office.

Sincerely, 

David Aguirre 

Interim Executive Director 

DA/ 

Attachments 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 

of the Imperial County Transportation Commission 
El Centro, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, and 
each major fund of the Imperial County Transportation Commission (the “Commission”) as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise the Commission’s 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, and each major fund of the Commission, as 
of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such mission 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operation, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements 
is not affected by this missing information. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Budgetary Comparison 
Schedules – Major Special Revenue Funds, the Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and 
Related Ratios, and the Schedule Pension Contributions, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures 
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Commission’s basic financial statements. The budgetary comparison schedules are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
The budgetary comparison schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In 
our opinion, the budgetary comparison schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated __________, 2022 on our 
consideration of the Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report 
is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
__________, 2022 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL  
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
Independent Auditors’ Report 

 
To the Board of Directors 

of the Imperial County Transportation Commission 
El Centro, California 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, and 
each major fund of the Imperial County Transportation Commission (“the Commission”), as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Commission’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated __________, 2022. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Commission’s internal control 
over financial reporting (“internal control”) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. 
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to 
be material weaknesses.  
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Commission’s financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  

 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the Commission’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable 
for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
__________, 2022 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR THE TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AGENCY REQUIRED BY 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT 

AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
 

Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
To the Board of Directors 

of the Imperial County Transportation Commission  
El Centro, California 
 
 
Report on Compliance for Transportation Planning Agency Required by Transportation Development Act 
 
We have audited the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s (“the Commission”) compliance with the 
compliance requirements described in §6662 and §6663 of the California Code of Regulation, Title 21, Division 3, 
Chapter 3, Article 5.5 applicable to the Commission’s compliance as Transportation Planning Agency (“TPA”) for 
the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Compliance with the requirements referred to above is the responsibility of the Commission’s management. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Commission’s compliance based on our audit.   
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and Transportation Development Act (“TDA”) Statutes and California 
Code of Regulations, July 2018, issued by the California Department of Transportation Division of Rail and Mass 
Transportation (“TDA Guidebook”). Those standards and TDA Guidebook require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a material effect on the Commission as TPA occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about the Commission’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures 
as we considered necessary in the circumstances.   
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal 
determination of the Commission’s compliance with these requirements. 
 
Opinion on the Commission as Transportation Planning Agency 
 
In our opinion, the Commission complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to 
above that are applicable to the Commission as Transportation Planning Agency for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of the Commission is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit, we considered 
the Commission’s internal control over compliance to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Commission’s internal control over compliance.   
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, noncompliance with a compliance requirement on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a compliance requirement will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a compliance requirement that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified.  
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing on 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of §6662 and §6663 of the 
California Codes of Regulation, Title 21, Division 3, Chapter 3, Article 5.5. Accordingly, this report is not suitable 
for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
__________, 2022 
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Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and investments 20,857,964$        18,363,957$        39,221,921$        
Receivables

Accounts receivable 482,916               252,851               735,767               
Interest receivable 42,886                 37,470                 80,356                 
Due from other governments 2,169,694            26,494                 2,196,188            

Internal balances -                           -                           -                           

Total current assets 23,553,460          18,680,772          42,234,232          

Non-current assets:
Capital assets:

Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation -                           5,302,874            5,302,874            

Total capital assets, net -                           5,302,874            5,302,874            

Total non-current assets -                           5,302,874            5,302,874            

Total assets 23,553,460          23,983,646          47,537,106          

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 232,363               493,772               726,135               

Total deferred outflows of resources 232,363               493,772               726,135               

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 641,030               627,353               1,268,383            
Accrued payroll 11,401                 22,971                 34,372                 
Unearned revenues 2,101,216            -                           2,101,216            
Compensated absences, due within one year 23,780                 50,532                 74,312                 

Total current liabilities 2,777,427            700,856               3,478,283            

Long-term liabilities:
Net pension liability 299,984               637,466               937,450               

Total long-term liabilities 299,984               637,466               937,450               

Total liabilities 3,077,411            1,338,322            4,415,733            

DEFFERED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 46,872                 99,602                 146,474               

Total deferred inflows of resources 46,872                 99,602                 146,474               

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets -                           5,302,874            5,302,874            
Restricted 20,661,540          17,736,620          38,398,160          

Total net position 20,661,540$        23,039,494$        43,701,034$        

Imperial County Transportation Commission
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financials Statements.
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Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and

Function/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Totals

Governmental Activities:
General government 1,965,518$          -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         
Professional services 368,778               -                           -                           -                           -                           
Transit and transportation 3,974,438            100,281               2,959,516            -                           3,059,797            

Total governmental activities 6,308,734            100,281               2,959,516            -                           3,059,797            

Business-type Activities:
Transportation services 8,117,276            225,679               8,378,098            -                           8,603,777            , ,

Total business-type activities 8,117,276            225,679               16,756,196          -                           8,603,777            

Total primary government 14,426,010$        325,960$             19,715,712$        -$                         11,663,574$        

Imperial County Transportation Commission
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Program Revenues

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financials Statements.
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Governmental Business-type
Function/Programs Activities Activities Totals

Governmental Activities:
General government (1,965,518)$         -$                         (1,965,518)$         
Professional services (368,778)              -                           (368,778)              

Transit and transportation (914,641)              -                           (914,641)              

Total governmental activities (3,248,937)           -                           (3,248,937)           

Business-type Activities:
Transportation services -                           486,501               486,501               

Total business-type activities -                           486,501               486,501               

Total primary government (3,248,937)           486,501               (2,762,436)           

General revenues:
Transportation Development Act sales taxes 7,651,421            -                           7,651,421            
Investment income 155,996               156,810               312,806               
Other miscellaneous revenue 17,328                 -                           17,328                 

Total general revenues 7,824,745            156,810               7,981,555            

Transfers: (1,729,256)           1,729,256            -                           

Changes in net position 2,846,552            2,372,567            5,219,119            

Net Position:

Beginning of year, as restated (Note 13) 17,814,988          20,666,927          38,481,915          

End of year 20,661,540$        23,039,494$        43,701,034$        

Net (Expense) Revenues and 
Changes in Net Position

Imperial County Transportation Commission
Statement of Activities (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financials Statements.
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Transportation State Transit State of
Development Act Assistance Prop 1B Good Repair

Fund Fund Fund Fund

ASSETS

Cash and investments 13,927,159$        3,510,642$          2$                        906,136$             
Receivables: 

Accounts receivable -                           -                           30                        -                           
Interest receivable 29,126                 7,242                   -                           1,838                   
Due from other governments 1,544,038            575,841               -                           49,815                 

Total assets 15,500,323          4,093,725            32                        957,789               

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable -                           26,325                 -                           -                           
Accrued payroll -                           -                           -                           -                           
Unearned revenues -                           1,143,427            -                           957,789               

Total liabilities -                           1,169,752            -                           957,789               

Fund Balances:

Restricted 15,500,323          2,923,973            32                        -                           

Total fund balances 15,500,323          2,923,973            32                        -                           

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and fund balances 15,500,323$        4,093,725$          32$                      957,789$             

Special Revenue Funds

Imperial County Transportation Commission
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2021

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financials Statements.
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Regional Regional
Planning and Collaborations SAFE

Programs Fund Fund Fund

ASSETS

Cash and investments 951,219$             6,089$                 1,556,717$          20,857,964$        
Receivables: 

Accounts receivable 445,530               -                           37,356                 482,916               
Interest receivable 1,417                   3                          3,260                   42,886                 
Due from other governments -                           -                           -                           2,169,694            

Total assets 1,398,166            6,092                   1,597,333            23,553,460          

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 587,328               5,446                   21,931                 641,030               
Accrued payroll 10,562                 146                      693                      11,401                 
Unearned revenues -                           -                           -                           2,101,216            

Total liabilities 597,890               5,592                   22,624                 2,753,647            

Fund Balances:

Restricted 800,276               500                      1,574,709            20,799,813          

Total fund balances 800,276               500                      1,574,709            20,799,813          

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and fund balances 1,398,166$          6,092$                 1,597,333$          23,553,460$        

Balance Sheet (Continued)

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Imperial County Transportation Commission

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2021

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financials Statements.
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Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Fund balances of governmental funds 20,799,813$        

Net pension liabilities and the related deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are not due and
payable in the current period or not available for current expenditures and are not reported in the governmental fund
financial statements:

Pension related deferred outflows of resources 232,363               
Net pension liability (299,984)              
Pension related deferred inflows of resources (46,872)                

Compensated absences liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the
governmental funds: (23,780)                

Net position of governmental activities 20,661,540$        

Imperial County Transportation Commission
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2021

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financials Statements.
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Transportation State Transit State of
Development Act Assistance Prop 1B Good Repair

Fund Fund Fund Fund

Revenues:

State allocations -$                         1,734,963$          5,558$                 -$                         
Federal allocations -                           -                           -                           -                           
TDA sales taxes 7,651,421            -                           -                           -                           
Investment income 114,445               21,047                 32                        -                           
Membership revenues -                           -                           -                           -                           
Other revenues -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total revenues 7,765,866            1,756,010            5,590                   -                           

Expenditures:

Current:
TDA disbursements 3,982,646            -                           -                           -                           
General and administrative 891,540               -                           -                           -                           
Professional services -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total expenditures 4,874,186            -                           -                           -                           

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 2,891,680            1,756,010            5,590                   -                           

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in -                           -                           -                           -                           
Transfers out (366,097)              (1,723,698)           (5,558)                  -                           

Total other financing sources (uses) (366,097)              (1,723,698)           (5,558)                  -                           

Net change in fund balance 2,525,583            32,312                 32                        -                           

Fund Balances:

Beginning of year, as restated (Note 13) 12,974,740          2,891,661            -                           -                           

End of year 15,500,323$        2,923,973$          32$                      -$                         

Special Revenue Funds

Imperial County Transportation Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financials Statements.
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Regional Regional
Planning and Collaborations SAFE

Programs Fund Fund Fund

Revenues:

State allocations 515,034$             -$                         219,306$             2,474,861$          
Federal allocations 445,362               39,293                 -                           484,655               
TDA sales taxes -                           -                           -                           7,651,421            
Investment income 6,239                   58                        14,175                 155,996               
Membership revenues 100,281               -                           -                           100,281               
Other revenues 17,178                 -                           150                      17,328                 

Total revenues 1,084,094            39,351                 233,631               10,884,542          

Expenditures:

Current:
TDA disbursements -                           -                           -                           3,982,646            
General and administrative 1,042,967            5                          31,006                 1,965,518            
Professional services 216,796               44,335                 107,647               368,778               

Total expenditures 1,259,763            44,340                 138,653               6,316,942            

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (175,669)              (4,989)                  94,978                 4,567,600            

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 366,097               -                           -                           366,097               
Transfers out -                           -                           -                           (2,095,353)           

Total other financing sources (uses) 366,097               -                           -                           (1,729,256)           

Net change in fund balance 190,428               (4,989)                  94,978                 2,838,344            

Fund Balances:

Beginning of year, as restated (Note 13) 609,848               5,489                   1,479,731            17,961,469          

End of year 800,276$             500$                    1,574,709$          20,799,813$        

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Imperial County Transportation Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financials Statements.
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Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances of governmental funds 2,838,344$            
 

Changes in the net pension liability in the Statement of Activities did not require the use of current 
financial resources and, therefore, is not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. (103,776)                

 

Changes in pension-related deferrals in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. 

Pension-related deferred outflows of resources 107,778                 
Pension-related deferred inflows of resources 6,709                     

Changes in compensated absences do not use current financial resources and, therefore are not reported as 
an expenditure in governmental funds. (2,503)                    

 

Change in net position of governmental activities 2,846,552$            

 
 

Imperial County Transportation Commission
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financials Statements.
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Transit Planning 
and Programs SB 325 Funds
Management for Article 8c

Fund Fund Totals
ASSETS

Current Assets: 
Cash and investments 18,363,957$        -$                         18,363,957$        
Receivables: 

Accounts receivable 252,851               -                           252,851               
Due from other governments 26,494                 -                           26,494                 
Interest receivable 37,470                 -                           37,470                 

Total current assets 18,680,772          -                           18,680,772          

Noncurrent Assets: 
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 5,302,874            -                           5,302,874            

Total noncurrent assets 5,302,874            -                           5,302,874            

Total assets 23,983,646          -                           23,983,646          

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 493,772               -                           493,772               

Total deferred outflows of resources 493,772               -                           493,772               

LIABILITIES  
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 627,353               -                           627,353               
Accrued payroll 22,971                 -                           22,971                 
Compensated absences, due within one year 50,532                 -                           50,532                 

Total current liabilities 700,856               -                           700,856               

Long-term liabilities:
Net pension liability 637,466               -                           637,466               

Total long-term liabilities 637,466               -                           637,466               

Total liabilities 1,338,322            -                           1,338,322            

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 99,602                 -                           99,602                 

Total deferred inflows of resources 99,602                 -                           99,602                 

NET POSITION  
Net investment in capital assets 5,302,874            -                           5,302,874            
Restricted 17,736,620          -                           17,736,620          

Total net position 23,039,494$        -$                         23,039,494$        

Imperial County Transportation Commission
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2021

Enterprise Funds

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financials Statements.
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Transit Planning 
and Programs SB 325 Funds
Management for Article 8c

Fund Fund Totals
 

Operating Revenues:
Passenger fares 225,679$             -$                         225,679$             

Operating Expenses:
Purchased transportation services 2,614,057            3,398,558            6,012,615            
Professional services 355,193               -                           355,193               
General administration 941,468               -                           941,468               
Capital contributions 9,120                   -                           9,120                   
Maintenance 203,134               -                           203,134               
Depreciation 595,746               -                           595,746               

Total operating expenses 4,718,718            3,398,558            8,117,276            

Operating income (loss) (4,493,039)           (3,398,558)           (7,891,597)           

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):  
State transit revenues 4,313,087            -                           4,313,087            
Federal grant revenues 3,679,409            -                           3,679,409            
ICTC reimbursements 385,602               -                           385,602               
Interest income 156,810               -                           156,810               

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 8,534,908            -                           8,534,908            

Income (loss) before transfers 4,041,869            (3,398,558)           643,311               

Transfers: 
Transfers in 1,729,256            3,398,558            5,127,814            
Transfers out (3,398,558)           -                           (3,398,558)           

Total transfers (1,669,302)           3,398,558            1,729,256            

Change in net position 2,372,567            -                           2,372,567            

Net Position:

Beginning of year 20,666,927          -                           20,666,927          

End of year 23,039,494$        -$                         23,039,494$        

Imperial County Transportation Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Enterprise Funds

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financials Statements.
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Transit Planning 
and Programs SB 325 Funds
Management for Article 8c

Fund Fund Totals
 

Cash flows from operating activities:

Passenger fares 225,679$             -$                         225,679$             
Payments to vendors (3,086,142)           (3,398,558)           (6,484,700)           
Payments to employees (934,927)              -                           (934,927)              

Net cash (used in) operating activities (3,795,390)           (3,398,558)           (7,193,948)           

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Cash received from other funds 2,123,109            3,398,558            5,521,667            
Cash paid to other funds (3,398,558)           -                           (3,398,558)           
Non-operating grants received 10,428,384          -                           10,428,384          

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 9,152,935            3,398,558            12,551,493          

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest received 147,222               -                           147,222               

Net cash provided by investing activities 147,222               -                           147,222               

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,504,767            -                           5,504,767            

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 12,859,190          -                           12,859,190          

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 18,363,957$        -$                         18,363,957$        

Reconciliation of operating (loss) to 
net cash provided by operating activities

Operating (loss) (4,493,039)$         (3,398,558)$         (7,891,597)$         
Adjustment to reconcile operating loss to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 595,746               -                           595,746               
Change in assets and liabilities:

Pension-related deferred outflows of resources (228,016)              -                           (228,016)              
Accounts payable 95,362                 -                           95,362                 
Accrued payroll 22,971                 -                           22,971                 
Compensated absences 5,319                   -                           5,319                   
Net pension liability 220,525               -                           220,525               
Pension-related deferred inflows of resources (14,258)                -                           (14,258)                

Total adjustments 697,649               -                           697,649               

Net cash used in operating activities (3,795,390)$         (3,398,558)$         (7,193,948)$         

Imperial County Transportation Commission
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Enterprise Funds

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financials Statements.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 
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Note 1 – Reporting Entity 
 
The Imperial County Transportation Commission (the “Commission”) was established under Senate Bill 607 (SB 
607 - Ducheny) which was approved by the California Legislature and Governor Arnold Schwarzenegger in 2009. As 
a county transportation commission, the Commission member agencies are enabled to exercise basic initiative and 
leadership in the transportation planning and programming process. The Commission will act in accordance with all 
applicable laws and statutes for county transportation commissions. The Commission body will guide the 
development of the Regional Transportation Plan for the Imperial region and its Regional, State and Federal 
transportation improvement programs (“TIP”s) and their updates, including, but not limited to: the distribution and 
oversight of Local Transportation Fund monies; the preparation and submittal of applications for transportation 
related funds; approval of the allocation and claims for Transportation Development Act funds; the planning, 
programming and administration of regional transit services; and, encourage active citizen participation in the 
development and implementation of various transportation-related plans and programs.  
 
As established under SB 607, the Commission Board is currently composed of ten voting members and one non-
voting member consisting of two members of the Imperial County Board of Supervisors; one member from each 
incorporated city (seven) within Imperial County who shall be the mayor of the city or a member of its city council; 
one member of the Board of Directors of the Imperial Irrigation District; and, one non-voting member appointed by 
the Governor representing the California Department of Transportation (“CalTrans”). In the future the governing 
Board of the commission may also include the following ex-officio or non-voting members: one member 
representing the State of Baja California, Mexico, who may be appointed by the governor of the state; one member 
representing the municipality of Mexicali, Mexico, who may be the mayor or his or her designee; one member 
representing the Consul of Mexico in Calexico, California, who may be the consul or his or her designee; and, one 
member representing any federally recognized Native American tribe in Imperial County. 
 
In addition to the responsibilities described above, the Commission provides direct management, administration and 
oversight for the following local and regional transportation programs: 
 

 Imperial Valley Transit (IVT) System and its Inner-City Circulator Service (Blue, Green, and Gold Lines) 
 MedTrans (non-emergency medical demand response service to San Diego) 
 IVT ACCESS (Americans with Disabilities Act - ADA paratransit service) 
 IVT RIDE (curb to curb transit service for seniors; persons age 55 years and over, and persons with 

disabilities in the Cities of Brawley, Calexico, El Centro, Heber, Imperial and West Shores) 
 Imperial County Local Transportation Authority (Measure D Sales Tax Program) 

 
 
Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
The basic financial statements of the Commission have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted of the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) as applied to governmental agencies. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Commission’s accounting 
policies are described below. 
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Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
A. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 
 

The accounts of the Commission are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate 
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts 
that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund equity, 
revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted 
for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending 
activities are controlled. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 

 
The Commission’s Government-Wide Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement 
of Activities. These statements present summaries of governmental activities for the Commission accompanied 
by a total column.  
 
These financial statements are presented on an “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis 
of accounting. Accordingly, all of the Commission’s assets and liabilities, including capital assets, as well as 
long-term liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of net position. The Statement of Activities 
presents changes in net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in 
which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. 
 
Certain types of transactions are reported as program revenues for the Commission in the following categories: 

 
 Charges for services; 
 Operating grants and contributions; 
 Capital grants and contributions 

 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements 

 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Change in Fund Balances. An accompanying reconciliation explains the differences in net position as 
presented in these statements to the net position presented in the Government-Wide Financial Statements.  
 
The governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or "current financial resources" measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and current liabilities are included 
on the Balance Sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance presents increases 
(revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current 
assets. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in 
which they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period.  
 
Revenues are recorded when received in cash, except for that revenues subject to accrual (generally 60 days after 
year-end) are recognized when measurable and available. The primary revenue sources, which have been treated 
as susceptible to accrual by the Commission, are sales tax and intergovernmental revenues. Expenditures are 
recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred. 
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Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

A. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (Continued) 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
Revenues from grants and other contributions are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, 
which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; 
matching requirements, in which the Commission must provide local resources to be used for a specific purpose; 
and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the Commission on a reimbursement basis. 
 
Unavailable revenues arise when potential revenues do not meet both the “measurable” and “available” criteria 
for recognition in the current period. Unearned revenues arise when the government receives resources before it 
has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures. In 
subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met or when the government has a legal claim to 
the resources, the unavailable and unearned revenues are removed from the Balance Sheet and revenues are 
recognized. 
 
The Reconciliation of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-Wide Financial Statements is provided 
to explain the differences.  

 
The Commission reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

Transportation Development Act Fund – This fund was established by the Commission in order to 
administer funds derived from ¼ cent of the local general sales tax collected statewide. The state Board of 
Equalization returns the ¼ cent to each county according to the amount of tax collected. Disbursements from 
the TDA fund are made to the County of Imperial and the cities located within the County. 
 
State Transit Assistance Fund - This fund was established pursuant to SB 620 to supplement existing funding 
sources for public transit services. The revenues of the fund are derived from a portion of the sales tax on 
gasoline and are subject to appropriation by the legislature. Disbursements from the fund are made by the 
Imperial County Auditor-Controller based upon allocation instruction received from the Commission. 

 
Prop 1B Fund - This fund was established in order to account for funding received from bonds issued by the 
State. These funds provide for transit capital, corridor mobility improvements, goods movement, state-local 
partnership funds and local streets and roads. 
 
State of Good Repair Fund - This fund was established in order to account for the funding received for the 
provisions of SB1 which apportions funding by formula for any transit-related capital maintenance purposes, 
including repair, refurbishment and replacement of existing transit vehicles and infrastructure. 
 
Regional Planning and Programs Fund - This fund was established in order to administer regional 
transportation programs and services.  
 
Regional Collaborations Fund - This fund was established for the purpose of tracking activities of joint 
projects with other agencies in the region.  

 
SAFE Fund - This fund was established for the purpose of tracking activities of the Service Authority for 
Freeway Emergencies revenues received from the Department of Motor Vehicles user registration fees.  
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Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

A. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (Continued) 
 
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements 
 
Proprietary funds account for operations (1) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private 
business enterprises. The intent of the governing body is that costs (expenses, including depreciation) of 
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered through user 
charges; or (2) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses 
incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, 
accountability, or other purposes. 
 
Proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of “economic resources” measurement focus and accrual basis of 
accounting. With this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the operation are recognized 
when they are earned, and expenses and deductions are recognized when they are incurred. Non-exchange 
revenues are recognized when all eligibility requirements have been met. Cost reimbursement grant revenues are 
recognized when program expenses are incurred in accordance with program guidelines. When non-exchange 
revenues are received before eligibility requirements at met, they are reported as unearned revenues until earned. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the 
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenue of the Commission’s 
proprietary funds are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost 
of services, general and administrative expenses, and depreciation. All revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
 
The Commission reports the following major enterprise funds: 
 

Transit Planning and Programs Fund - This fund was established in order to administer the various transit 
programs, grants and services provided either in house or under contract with various providers. The program 
receives various state and federal grants including the Federal Transportation Administration (FTA) Section 
5307, 5310, and 5311. The specific federal funds received are programmed to be utilized for operation costs of 
Imperial Valley Transit (IVT), the IVT Blue, Green and Gold Lines, MedTrans, and IVT ACCESS, the ADA 
paratransit system and the mobility coordination program. 
 
SB 325 for Article 8c Fund - This fund was established through five contracts with outside vendors. They are 
held with First Transit, Inc. to provide the Imperial Valley Transit fixed route service, the IVT ACCESS which 
provides paratransit service exclusively for disabled persons under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), 
IVT-RIDE an intra city dial-a-ride service for senior and persons with disabilities within Brawley, Calexico, El 
Centro, Heber, Imperial and the West Shores, and IVT MedTrans which provide nonemergency transportation to 
medical facilities in San Diego in order to administer regional transportation programs and services. This fund 
tracks amounts that the Commission claims on its Article 8c form towards transit operations.  
 

B. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The County of Imperial Auditor-Controller office acts as a trustee for the funds received and disbursed. Cash and 
investments are held in the County investment pool to facilitate cash management and maximize investment 
opportunities and yields. Investment income resulting from this pooling is allocated to the respective funds. The 
investment policies and the risks related to cash and investments are those of the County investment pool and are 
disclosed in the County’s basic financial statements. The County’s basic financial statements can be obtained at 
the County Administrative Office. 
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Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

B. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued) 
 

Cash and investments are reported at fair value. The fair value measurements are based on fair value hierarchy 
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active market for identical assets; Level 2 
inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. Deposits and 
withdrawals in the County Investment Pool are made on the basis of $1 and not fair value. Accordingly, 
investments in the County Investment Pool are based on uncategorized inputs not defined as Level 1, Level 2, or 
Level 3. 
 

C. Interfund Transactions 
 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal 
year are referred to as “due from/to other funds” (i.e., current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other 
funds” (i.e., long-term in nature). Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and 
business-type activities are reported in the Government-wide Financial Statements as “internal balances”. 

 
D. Capital Assets 

 

Capital assets, which include equipment and vehicles, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the 
Commission as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of 
one year. Such capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or 
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date of donation. The cost 
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the capital asset or materially extend capital 
asset lives are not capitalized. 
 
Capital assets are depreciated or amortized using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful 
lives: 
 

Assets Useful Lives

Automobiles 80,000 to 95,000 miles
Buildings 40 years
Improvements Remaining useful life
Radios and communication equipment 3 years
Small furniture, fixtures, and office equipment 5 years
Large furniture and durable goods 10 years
Computer hardware 3 years
Computer software 3 years
Transit vehicles 5 to 12 years  

 

E. Unearned Revenue  
 

Unearned revenues are reported for resources received before the eligibility requirements are met (excluding time 
requirements) or services are provided.  
 

F. Compensated Absences 
 

GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, provides specific guidance on how the 
leave liability should be calculated. Personal time off (PTO) hours accumulated and not taken are accrued at 
fiscal year-end and a liability is reported in the government-wide financial statements. The liability will be 
liquidated with resources from the governmental and proprietary funds. Upon termination an employee with 
a minimum of twelve months of continuous services will receive 100% of the unused PTO balance. 
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Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

G. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources  
 
The Statement of Net Position/Balance Sheet reports separate sections for deferred outflows of resources, and 
deferred inflows of resources, when applicable. 

 
Deferred Outflows of Resources represent outflows of resources (consumption of net position) that 
apply to future periods and that, therefore, will not be recognized as an expense until that time. 

 

Deferred Inflows of Resources represent inflows of resources (acquisition of net position) that apply to 
future periods and that, therefore, are not recognized as revenue until that time. 

 
The Commission reports deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pension on the Government-wide 
Statement of Net Position, under full accrual basis of accounting. Pension-related deferred outflows of resources 
relate to contributions made subsequent to the measurement date, which will be reflected as a reduction of net 
pension liability in a future reporting period, difference between expected and actual experience, changes of 
assumptions, net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments, and adjustments due 
to differences in proportions. Pension-related deferred inflows of resources include the difference between expected 
and actual experience and adjustments due to differences in proportions, and will be recognized as part of pension 
expense in future reporting periods. Refer to Note 8 for items identified as deferred inflows and outflows related to 
pensions as of June 30, 2021. 
 

H. Net Position Classifications 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, net position is classified in the following categories:  
 

Net Investment in Capital Assets – This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. This portion of net position is not accessible for other purposes.  
 

Restricted – This component of net position consists of restricted assets and deferred outflows of resources 
reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. The restrictions are placed by 
third parties or enabling legislation.  

 

Unrestricted – This component of net position is the remaining amount of the assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net 
investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net position. 

 
When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net positions are available, 
the Commission’s policy is to apply restricted net position first. 
 

I. Fund Balance Classifications 
 
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified in the following categories: 

 

Nonspendable – Items that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, such as prepaid items and 
inventories, and items that are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact, such as principal of 
an endowment or revolving loan funds.  
 

Restricted – Restricted fund balances encompass the portion of net fund resources subject to externally 
enforceable legal restrictions. This includes externally imposed restrictions by creditors, such as through debt 
covenants, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other governments as well as restrictions imposed by 
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  
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Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

I. Fund Balance Classifications (Continued) 
 

Committed – Committed fund balances encompass the portion of net fund resources, the use of which is 
constrained by limitations that the government imposes upon itself at its highest level of decision making, 
normally the governing body and that remain binding unless removed in the same manner. The Commission 
Board of Directors is considered the highest authority for the Commission and must commit or uncommit 
fund balance via formal resolution.  
 
Assigned – Assigned fund balances encompass the portion of net fund resources reflecting the government’s 
intended use of resources. Assignment of resources can be done by the highest level of decision making or by 
a committee or official designated for that purpose. The Board and the Executive Director have the authority 
to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. 
 
Unassigned – This category is for the remaining fund balance.  

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Commission’s policy to use externally 
restricted resources first, the unrestricted resources-committed, assigned, and unassigned-in order as needed. The 
Commission has no formal policy of assignment of fund balance, so it is presumed that the order of spending is first 
committed fund balance, then assigned fund balance, and last of all, unassigned fund balance. 

 
J. Pensions 

 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
Commission’s Imperial County Employees’ Retirement System (ICERS) plans (Plans) and additions 
to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported 
by the ICERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.  
 
The following timeframes are used for pension reporting: 

 
 Valuation Date  June 30, 2019 
 Measurement Date  June 30, 2020 
 Measurement Period  July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 

 
Gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in pension 
expense systematically over time. The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the 
gain or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions and are to be recognized in future pension expense. The amortization period differs 
depending on the source of the gain or loss. The difference between projected and actual earnings is amortized 
straight-line over five years. All other amounts are amortized straight-line over the average expected remaining 
service lives of all members that are provided with benefits (active, inactive, and retired) as of the beginning of 
the measurement period. 
 

K. Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosures at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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Note 3 – Cash and Investments 
 
At June 30, 2021, cash and investments are classified in the financial statements as follows: 
 

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

Cash and investments 20,857,964$        18,363,957$        39,221,921$        
 

 
At June 30, 2021, cash and investments consisted of the following: 
 

Deposits with financial institutions 386,068$             
Imperial County investment pool 38,835,853          

Total 39,221,921$        

 
Demand Deposits 
 
At June 30, 2021, the carrying amount of the Commission’s deposits were $386,068 and bank balances were 
$386,068. The total bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the 
Commission’s agent in the Commission’s name as discussed below. 
 
The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to secure the 
Commission’s cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. This Code states that collateral pledged in this manner 
shall have the effect of perfecting a security interest in such collateral superior to those of a general creditor. Thus, 
collateral for cash deposits is considered to be held in the Commission's name. 
 
The market value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the Commission's cash deposits. California law 
also allows institutions to secure the Commission deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value 
of 150% of the Commission’s total cash deposits. the Commission may waive collateral requirements for cash 
deposits, which are fully insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”). the 
Commission has waived the collateralization requirements for deposits insured by FDIC. 
 
Cash Pooled with Imperial County Investment Pool  
 
The Commission is a participant in the Imperial County Investment Pool (Pool) and maintained cash in the amount of 
$38,835,853 in the Imperial County Treasury at June 30, 2021. The County pools these funds with those of other 
entities in the County and invests the cash. Cash on deposit in the Pool is stated at fair value. The Pool values 
participant shares at fair market value during the year and adjusts to fair value at year-end.  
 
Required disclosure information regarding categorization of investments and other deposit and investment risk 
disclosures can be found in the County of Imperial’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.  
 
The Pool is not registered within the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), and a treasury oversight 
committee provides oversight to ensure that investments comply with the approved County investment policy. At 
June 30, 2021, the weighted average maturity for the Pool is less than one year. The Imperial County Treasury is not 
rated by the rating agency. At the year end, the Imperial County Treasury was not exposed to custodial credit risk. 
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Note 4 – Federal, State, and Local Grants 
 
Federal Assistance – The Commission receives Federal operating assistance funds through the U.S. Department of 
Transit Grant (Urbanized Area Formula Program – Federal Grant 5307, Rural Area Formula Program – Federal 
Grant 5311, Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities – Federal Grant 5310 and Congestion 
Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program – CMAQ) and Environmental Protection Agency. Total Federal 
assistance provided during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 was $4,164,064. 
 
Transportation Development Act – The Commission is subject to provisions pursuant to Section 6634 and 6637 of 
the California Administrative Code (CAC) and section 99268.3, 99268.4, and 99268.5 of the Public Utilities Code. 
 
Section 6634 – Pursuant to Section 6634, a transit claimant is precluded from receiving monies from the Local 
Transportation Fund and the State Transit Assistance Fund in an amount which exceeds the claimant’s capital and 
operating costs less the required fare, local support, and the amount received during the year from a city or county to 
which the operator has provided service beyond its boundaries. 
 
CMAQ – Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality grants from the Environmental Protection Agency and Better 
Utilizing Investment to Leverage Development.  
 
Section 6637 – Pursuant to Section 6637, the claimant must maintain its accounts and records in accordance with the 
Uniform System of Accounts and Records adopted by the State Controller. 
 
Section 9926.3, 99268.4 and 99268.5 – The Commission has several fare box recovery ratios for the various services 
provided. 
 

Required Actual

IVT 17% 6.94%
IVT Access 10% 1.77%
IVT Ride 10% 1.25%
MedTrans 10% 3.03%  

 
Proposition 1B - The Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement, and Service Enhancement Account 
(PTMISEA) Fund and California Transit Security Grant Program (CTSGP) are part of the State of California’s 
Highway Safety, Traffic Reduction, Air Quality, and Port Security Bond Act of 2006 (Bond Act), approved by 
California voters as Proposition 1B on November 7, 2006. A total of $19.9 billion was deposited into the State Prop 
1B fund, $3.6 billion of which was made available to project sponsors in California for allocation to eligible public 
transportation projects over a 10-year period. Proposition 1B funds can be used for rehabilitation, safety or 
modernization improvements, capital service enhancements or expansions, new capital projects, bus rapid transit 
improvements, or for rolling stock procurement, rehabilitation or replacement. The unearned balances for PTMISEA 
and CTSGP as of June 30, 2021 are $0 and $88,085, respectively at June 30, 2021. 
 
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) – LCTOP is one of several programs that are part of the 
Transit, Affordable Housing, and Sustainable Communities Program established by the California Legislature in 
2014 by Senate bill 862. The LCTOP was created to provide operating and capital assistance for transit agencies to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions and improve mobility, with a priority on serving disadvantaged communities. The 
unearned balance for LCTOP funds as of June 30, 2021 was $1,143,427. 
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Note 4 – Federal, State, and Local Grants (Continued) 
 
State of Good Repair – The State of Good Repair Program provides funding to agencies for transit infrastructure 
repairs and service improvements. SGR funds are made available for eligible transit maintenance, rehabilitation and 
capital projects. The total unearned balance for State of Good Repair funds as of June 30, 2021 was $957,789. 
 
STIP-PPM Program – During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the Commission applied for and received 
proceeds of $202,000 from the State of California STIP-PPM Program. As of June 30, 2021, Category A, B, and C 
proceeds have been fully expended.  
 

Schedule III - STIP-PPM Category A
Salaries & Benefits 76,013$          
Professional & Special Services 3,987              

Sutotal category A 80,000            

Schedule IV - STIP-PPM Category B
Salaries & Benefits 41,726            
Professional & Special Services 38,274            

Sutotal category B 80,000            

Schedule V - STIP-PPM Category C
Salaries & Benefits 35,293            
Professional & Special Services 4,009              
Travel 2,698              

Sutotal category C 42,000            

Total 202,000$        
 

 
Better Utilizing Investment to Leverage Development (BUILD) – The BUILD program is a federal competitive 
grant that looks to enhance America’s infrastructure. The Commission was awarded a $20 million grant for the 
Calexico East Port of Entry Bridge Widening Project. As of June 30, 2021,  the Commission has spent $445,362 of 
the awarded proceeds on the project.  
 
 
Note 5 – Interfund Transactions  
 
A. Transfers  
 

Interfund transfers consisted of the following for the year ended June 30, 2021:  
 

Transit Planning 
Transportation State Transit and Programs

Development Act Assistance Prop 1B Management 
Governmental Governmental Governmental Enterprise

Transfers In Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

Governmental Funds: 
Regional Planning and Programs Fund 366,097$             -$                         -$                         -$                         366,097$             

Enterprise Funds: 
Transit Planning and Programs Management Fund -                           1,723,698            5,558                   -                           1,729,256            
SB 325 Funds for Article 8c Fund -                           -                           -                           3,398,558            3,398,558            

Total 366,097$             1,723,698$          5,558$                 3,398,558$          5,493,911$          

Transfers Out

 
 

Interfund transfers are generally used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget require to collect 
them to fund that statute or budget requires to expend them. 
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Note 6 – Capital Assets 
 
A summary of changes in capital assets for the business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2021 is as follows:  
 

Balance Balance

July 1, 2020 Additions Deletions June 30, 2021

Business-type Activities:

Depreciable assets:

Furniture 14,045$             -$                       -$                       14,045$             

Transit equipment 11,066,420        -                         -                         11,066,420        

Total depreciable assets 11,080,465        -                         -                         11,080,465        

Less: accumulated depreciation

Furniture (14,045)              -                         -                         (14,045)              

Transit equipment (5,167,800)         (595,746)            -                         (5,763,546)         

Total accumulated depreciation (5,181,845)         (595,746)            -                         (5,777,591)         

Business-type activities capital assets, net 5,898,620$        (595,746)$          -$                       5,302,874$        
 

 
Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2021 was from the following funds and was charged to 
transportation services for the business-type activities on the government-wide financial statements:  
 

Transit Planning and Programs Management Fund 595,746$           

Total business-type activities depreciation 595,746$           

Transportation services 595,746$           
 

 
 
Note 7 – Compensated Absences 
 
Changes in compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2021, were as follows: 
 

Balance Balance Due in
July 1, 2020 Additions Deletions June 30, 2021 One Year

Governmental Activities:
Compensated absences 21,277$             31,011$             (28,508)$            23,780$             23,780$             

21,277$             31,011$             (28,508)$            23,780$             23,780$             

Business-type Activities:
Compensated absences 45,213$             65,899$             (60,580)$            50,532$             50,532$             

 
 

The Commission’s policy relating to employees leave benefits is described in Note 2F, Compensated Absences. The 
long-term portion of compensated absences is expected to be paid in future years from future resources from the 
Regional Planning and Programs, Regional Collaboration, and Transit Planning and Programs Management funds. 
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Note 8 – Pension  
 
A. General Information about the Pension Plan 

 
Plan Description 
 
The Imperial County Employees Retirement System (ICERS) was established by the County of Imperial in 1951. 
ICERS is administered by the Board of Retirement and governed by the County Employees’ Retirement Law of 
1937 (California Government Code Section 31450 et. Seq.). ICERS is a cost-sharing multiple employer public 
employee retirement system whose main function is to provide service retirement, disability, death and survivor 
benefits to members employed by the Commission. 
 
The management of ICERS is vested with the Imperial County Board of Retirement. The Board consists of nine 
members and two alternates. The County Treasurer is a member of the Board of Retirement by law. Four 
members are appointed by the Board of Supervisors, one of whom may by a County Supervisor. Two members 
are elected by the General membership; one member and one alternate are elected by the Safety membership; one 
member and one alternate are elected by the retired members of the System. All members of the Board of 
Retirement serve terms of three years except for the County Treasurer whose term runs concurrent with their term 
as County Treasurer. 
 
ICERS issues an audited stand-alone financial report which may be obtained by contacting the Board of 
Retirement at 1221 W. State Street, El Centro, CA 92243. 
 
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 
 
At the June 30, 2020 measurement date, plan membership consisted of the following: 
 

Active employees 10                       
Retired employees and beneficiaries 1                         

Total 11                       
 

 
Benefits Provided 
 
ICERS provides service retirement, disability, death and survivor benefits to eligible employees. All regular full-
time employees of the County of Imperial or contracting districts who work a minimum of 30 hours per week 
become members of ICERS effective on the first day of the first full pay period after employment. There are 
separate retirement plans for General and Safety member employees. Safety membership is extended to those 
involved in active law enforcement, fire suppression, and certain probation officers. Any new Safety Member 
who becomes a member on or after January 1, 2013 is designated as PEPRA Safety and is subject to the 
provisions of California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) and California Government 
Code 7522 et seq. All other employees are classified as General members. New general members employed after 
January 1, 2013 are designated as PEPRA General subject to the provisions of California Government Code 7522 
et seq. 
 
General members hired prior to January 1, 2013, are eligible to retire once they attain the age of 70 regardless of 
service or at age 50 with 10 or more years of retirement service credit. A member with 30 years of service is 
eligible to retire regardless of age. General members who are first hired on or after January 1, 2013, are eligible 
to retire once they have attained the age of 52, with five years of retirement service credit. 
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Note 8 – Pension (Continued) 
 

A. General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued) 
 
Benefits Provided (Continued) 
 
The retirement benefit the member will receive is based upon age at retirement, final average compensation, 
years of retirement service credit and retirement plan and tier. 
 
General member benefits are calculated pursuant to the provisions of Sections 31676.11 and 31676.14 for 
Regular and Regular plus Supplemental Benefits, respectively. The monthly allowance is equal to 1/60th of final 
compensation for Regular and Regular plus Supplemental Benefits, times years of accrued retirement service 
credit times age factor from either Section 31676.11 (Regular Benefit) or Section 31676.14 (Regular plus 
Supplemental Benefit). General member benefits for those who are first hired on or after January 1, 2013, are 
calculated pursuant to the provision of California Government Code Section 7522.20(a). The monthly allowance 
is equal to the final compensation multiplied by years of accrued retirement credit multiplied by the age factor 
from Section 7522.20(a). 
 
For members with membership dates before January 1, 2013, the maximum monthly retirement allowance is 
100% of final compensation. However, for members with membership dates on or after January 1, 2013 the 
maximum amount of pensionable compensation that can be taken into account for 2020 is equal to $151,549 
(reference Section 7522.10). This limit is adjusted on an annual basis. Members are exempt from paying member 
contributions and employers are exempt from paying employer contributions on compensation in excess of the 
annual cap. 
 
Final average compensation consists of the highest 12 consecutive months for a general or safety member and the 
highest 36 consecutive months for a PEPRA general member or PEPRA safety member. 
 
Contributions  
 
The County of Imperial and contracting districts contribute to the retirement plan based upon actuarially 
determined contribution rates adopted by the Board of Retirement. Employer contribution rates are adopted 
annually based upon recommendations received from ICERS’ actuary after the completion of the annual actuarial 
valuation. The average employer contribution rate as of June 30, 2020 for 2019-2020 (based on the June 30, 2018 
valuation) was 24.53% of compensation. 
 
All members are required to make contributions to ICERS regardless of the retirement plan or tier in which they 
are included. The average member contribution rate as of June 30, 2020 for 2019-2020 (based on the 
June 30, 2018 valuation) was 13.26% of compensation. 
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Note 8 – Pension (Continued) 
 

B. Net Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions  
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability  
 
The total pension liability (TPL) is measured as of June 30, 2020 and was determined by an actuarial valuation as 
of June 30, 2019 rolled forward to June 30, 2020 using standard update procedures. In particular, the following 
actuarial assumption were applied in the June 30, 2020 measurement:  
 

Actuarial Cost Method

Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount rate
Inflation
Salary increases
Administrative expenses 1.80% of payroll allocated to both the employer and member based 

on the components of the total contribution rate (before expenses) for 
the employer and member

Entry Age Normal in accordance with the requirements of GASB
Statement No. 68

7.00%
2.75%
4.50% to 9.25%

 
 

Long-term Expected Rate of Return  
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. These returns are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage, adding expected inflation and 
subtracting expected investment expenses and a risk margin. The target allocation and projected arithmetic real 
rates of return for each major asset class, after deducting inflation, but before deducting investment expenses are 
summarized in the following table. This information was used in the derivation of the long-term expected 
investment rate of return assumption used for the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation. This information is subject to 
change every three years based on the actuarial experience study. 
 

Long-term Expected
Target Arithmetic Real

Asset class1 Allocation Rate of Return

Large cap U.S. equity 23.00% 5.42%
Small cap U.S. equity 6.00% 6.21%
Developed international equity 17.00% 6.50%
Emerging markets equity 7.00% 8.80%
US core fixed income 22.00% 1.13%
TIPS 5.00% 0.87%
Real estate 5.00% 4.57%
Value added real estate 5.00% 8.10%
Private credit 5.00% 5.60%
Private equity 5.00% 9.40%

100.00%
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Note 8 – Pension (Continued) 
 
B. Net Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 

Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 
 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability (TPL) was 7.00% as of the June 30, 2020 
measurement date. For plan member contributions, the projection of cash flows used to determine the discount 
rate assumed employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rates and that the contributions will 
be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. For employer contributions, the projection 
of cash flow used to determine the discount rate assumed employer contributions will be made at rates equal to 
the actuarially determined contribution rates. 
 
For this purpose, only employee and employer contributions that are intended to fund benefits of current plan 
members and their beneficiaries are included. Based on those assumptions, the Pension Plan’s Fiduciary Net 
Position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments for current plan members. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all period of 
projected benefit payments to determine the TPL as part of the June 30, 2020 measurement date. 
 
Sensitivity of the Commission’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate  
 
The following presents the Commission’s share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 
7.00%, as well as what the Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.00%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.00%) 
that the current rate: 
 

Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%
(6.00%) Rate (7.00%) (8.00%)

1,676,913$               937,450$                  318,237$                  

Plan's Aggregate Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

 
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Detail information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued ICERS financial 
report and can be obtained from the County of Imperial’s website under Documents.  

 

Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and Pension Expense  
 
At June 30, 2021, the Commission reported a liability of $937,450 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation. The Commission’s proportion of the 
net pension liability was based on the projection of the long-term share of contributions to the pension plan 
related to the projected contributions of all pension plan participants, actuarially determined. At the 
June 30, 2020 measurement date, the Commission’s proportionate share of net pension liability was 0.477%. 
This is a .025% increase from the previous year. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Commission recognized pension expense of $110,470. Pension expense 
represents the change in the net pension liability during the measurement period, adjusted for actual contributions 
and the deferred recognition of changes in investment gain/loss, actuarial gain/loss, actuarial assumptions or 
method, and plan benefits. 
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Note 8 – Pension (Continued) 
 
B. Net Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 

Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 
 
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and Pension Expense (Continued) 

 
The following, is the approach established by the plan actuary to allocate the net pension liability and pension 
expense to the individual employers within the risk pool for the measurement period ended June 30, 2020. 

 
(1) In determining a cost-sharing plan’s proportionate share, total amounts of liabilities and assets are first 
calculated for the risk pool as a whole on the valuation date (June 30, 2019). The risk pool’s fiduciary net 
position (“FNP”) subtracted from its total pension liability (“TPL”) determines the net pension liability 
(“NPL”) at the valuation date.  
 
(2) Using standard actuarial roll forward methods, the risk pool TPL is then computed at the measurement 
date. Risk pool FNP at the measurement date is then subtracted from this number to compute the NPL for the 
risk pool at the measurement date. For purposes of FNP in this step and any later reference thereto, the risk 
pool’s FNP at the measurement date denotes the aggregate risk pool’s FNP at June 30, 2020 less the sum of 
all additional side fund (or unfunded liability) contributions made by all employers during the measurement 
period (2019-2020).  
 
(3) The individual plan’s TPL, FNP and NPL are also calculated at the valuation date. TPL is allocated 
based on the rate plan’s share of the actuarial accrued liability. FNP is allocated based on the rate plan’s 
share of the market value assets. 
 
(4) Two ratios are created by dividing the plan’s individual TPL and FNP as of the valuation date from (3) 
by the amounts in step (1), the risk pool’s total TPL and FNP, respectively.  
 
(5) The plan’s TPL as of the measurement date is equal to the risk pool TPL generated in (2) multiplied by 
the TPL ratio generated in (4).  The plan’s FNP as of the Measurement Date is equal to the FNP generated in 
(2) multiplied by the FNP ratio generated in (4) plus any additional side fund (or unfunded liability) 
contributions made by the employer on behalf of the plan during the measurement period.  
 
(6) The plan’s NPL at the measurement date is the difference between the TPL and FNP calculated in (5).  

 
Deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and pension expense is allocated based on the 
Commission’s share of contributions during measurement period. 
 
The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss. The difference between projected 
and actual earnings is amortized over 5-years straight line. All other amounts are amortized straight-line over the 
average expected remaining service lives of all members that are provided with benefits (active, inactive and 
retired) as of the beginning of the measurement period.  
 
The expected average remaining service lifetime (“EARSL”) is calculated by dividing the total future service 
years by the total number of plan participants (active, inactive, and retired) in the risk pool. The EARSL for risk 
pool for 2019-2020 measurement period is 6.74 years, which was obtained by dividing the total service years (the 
sum of the remaining service lifetimes of the active employees) by the total number of participants: active, 
inactive, and retired.  
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Note 8 – Pension (Continued) 
 
B. Net Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 

Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 
 
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and Pension Expense (Continued) 
 
At June 30, 2021, the Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Pension contribution after measurement date 152,886$                  -$                              
Difference between expected and actual experience 27,639                      (113,225)                   
Changes of assumptions 343,389                    -                                
Net difference between projected and actual earning on  

pension plan investments 128,375                    -                                
Adjustment due to differences in proportions 73,846                      (33,249)                     

Total 726,135$                  (146,474)$                 
 

 
$152,886 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Commission’s 
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the collective net 
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year Ended June 30,

Deferred Outflows/ 
(Inflows) of 
Resources

2022 69,570$                    
2023 107,427                    
2024 104,170                    
2025 76,117                      
2026 39,049                      

Thereafter 30,442                      

426,775$                  
 

 
At June 20, 2021, the Commission did not owe anything to the Plan.  
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Note 9 – Disbursements to Local Agencies 
 
The Local Transportation Fund (LTF) accounts for the one-quarter percent state sales tax collected within the 
County. The funds can be used for various programs, including administration, planning and programming for the 
Transportation Development Act (TDA), bicycle and pedestrian projects, commuter rail, streets and rail, and transit 
operations. The Commission’s governing board approves an annual allocation which includes funding for local 
agencies to spend in accordance with TDA guidelines. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the Commission 
allocated $2,234,888 of LTF funds to local agencies as shown below. 

 
Bicycles and Benches and 

Local Agency Pedestrians Shelters Total

City of Brawley 61,300$               11,300$               72,600$               
City of Calexico 41,963                 16,963                 58,926                 
City of Calipatria 1,519                   1,519                   3,038                   
City of El Centro 88,645                 18,645                 107,290               
City of Holtville 2,644                   2,644                   5,288                   
City of Imperial 28,264                 8,264                   36,528                 
County of Imperial 975                      14,690                 15,665                 
City of Westmorland 14,690                 975                      15,665                 

Total allocations 240,000$             75,000$               315,000$             
 

 
 
Note 10 – Risk Management 
 
the Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; and injuries to employees. These risks are covered by third-party commercial insurance. There 
have been no reductions in insurance coverage as compared to the previous year, and for the past fiscal year, no 
settlement amounts have occurred. 
 
The Commission’s purchased commercial insurance coverage is as follows: 
 

Insurance Amount

Personal injury 2,000,000$        
Public officials errors and omissions 2,000,000          
Products/completed operations 2,000,000          
Employment practices 2,000,000          
Crime 1,000,000          
Property 25,000,000        
Workers' compensation 1,000,000           

 
 
Note 11 – Commitments and Contingencies 
 
A. Litigation 

 
The Commission is a defendant in various lawsuits which arise under the normal course of the operations. In the 
opinion of Commission Counsel and management, such claims against the Commission not covered by insurance 
would not materially affect the financial statements of the Commission. 
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Note 11 – Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)  
 
B. Grants 

 
The Commission recognizes as revenues, grant monies received as reimbursement for costs incurred in certain 
federal and state programs it administers. Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to 
audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including 
amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures 
which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the Commission expects such 
amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

 
C. Commitments 
 
 As of June 30, 2021, the Commission did not have significant outstanding commitments.  

 
 

Note 12 – Other Required Disclosures 
 
A. Expenditures Exceeding Appropriations 

 
For the year ended June 30, 2021, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the following funds:  
 

Fund Function Excess Expenditures

Transportation Development Act Fund TDA disbursements (326,098)$                
Regional Planning and Programs Fund General and administrative 391,300                    
SAFE Fund General and administrative 906                           

Professional services 21,735                       
 
 
Note 13 – Prior Period Adjustment 

 
Beginning net position/fund balance has been adjusted in the governmental activities and the governmental fund 
financial statements in order to add the SAFE Special Revenue Fund to the Commission’s financial statements 
for fiscal year 2021 because the Commission had taken over administrative duties for the fund. The SAFE 
Special Revenue Fund was previously operated and reported by the County of Imperial.  
 
The effect of the prior period adjustment is as follows:  
 

SAFE
Special 

Governmental Revenue
Activities Fund

Beginning net position/fund balance at July 1, 2020 16,335,257$      -$                       
Include SAFE Fund from Imperial County 1,479,731          1,479,731          

Beginning net position/fund balance, as restated at July 1, 2020 17,814,988$      1,479,731$        
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Variance
With Final

Budget
Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:

TDA sales taxes 5,274,005$          5,274,005$          7,651,421$          2,377,416$          
Investment income -                           -                           114,445               114,445               

Total revenues 5,274,005            5,274,005            7,765,866            2,491,861            

Expenditures:

Current:
TDA disbursements 4,308,744            4,308,744            3,982,646            326,098               
STA projects -                           -                           -                           -                           
General and administrative 891,540               891,540               891,540               -                           

Total expenditures 5,200,284            5,200,284            4,874,186            326,098               

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 73,721                 73,721                 2,891,680            2,817,959            

Other Financing Sources:

Transfers out -                           -                           (366,097)              (366,097)              

Total other financing sources -                           -                           (366,097)              (366,097)              

Net change in fund balance 73,721$               73,721$               2,525,583            2,451,862$          

Fund Balance: 

Beginning of Year 12,974,740          

End of Year 15,500,323$        

Budgeted Amounts

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Transportation Development Act Fund

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Imperial County Transportation Commission
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Variance
With Final

Budget
Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:

State allocations 2,183,288$          2,183,288$          1,734,963$          (448,325)$            
Investment income -                           -                           21,047                 21,047                 

Total revenues 2,183,288            2,183,288            1,756,010            (427,278)              

Expenditures:

Current:
STA projects -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total expenditures -                           -                           -                           -                           

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 2,183,288            2,183,288            1,756,010            (427,278)              

Other Financing Sources:

Transfers out (783,288)              (783,288)              (1,723,698)           (940,410)              

Total other financing sources (783,288)              (783,288)              (1,723,698)           (940,410)              

Net change in fund balance 1,400,000$          1,400,000$          32,312                 (1,367,688)$         

Fund Balance: 

Beginning of Year 2,891,661            

End of Year 2,923,973$          

Imperial County Transportation Commission
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - State Transit Assistance Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
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Variance
With Final

Budget
Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:

State allocations 530,143$             530,143$             5,558$                 (524,585)$            
Investment income -                           -                           32                        32                        

Total revenues 530,143               530,143               5,590                   (524,553)              

Expenditures:

Current:
PTMISEA projects -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total expenditures -                           -                           -                           -                           

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 530,143               530,143               5,590                   (524,553)              

Other Financing Sources:

Transfers out (530,413)              (530,143)              (5,558)                  524,585               

Total other financing sources (530,413)              (530,143)              (5,558)                  524,585               

Net change in fund balance (270)$                   -$                         32                        32$                      

Fund Balance: 

Beginning of Year -                           

End of Year 32$                      

Imperial County Transportation Commission
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Prop 1B Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
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Variance
With Final

Budget
Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:

State allocations 854,300$             854,300$             515,034$             (339,266)$            
Federal allocations -                       -                       445,362               445,362               
Investment income 1,800                   1,800                   6,239                   4,439                   
Membership revenues 100,000               100,000               100,281               281                      
Other revenues 27,357                 27,357                 17,178                 (10,179)                

Total revenues 983,457               983,457               1,084,094            100,637               

Expenditures:

Current:
General and administrative 651,667               651,667               1,042,967            (391,300)              
Professional services 696,887               696,887               216,796               480,091               

Total expenditures 1,348,554            1,348,554            1,259,763            88,791                 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (365,097)              (365,097)              (175,669)              189,428               

Other Financing Sources:

Transfers in 366,097               366,097               366,097               -                           

Total other financing sources 366,097               366,097               366,097               -                           

Net change in fund balance 1,000$                 1,000$                 190,428               189,428$             

Fund Balance: 

Beginning of Year 609,848               

End of Year 800,276$             

Imperial County Transportation Commission
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Regional Planning and Programs Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
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Variance
With Final

Budget
Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:

State allocations 340,631$             340,631$             -$                         (340,631)$            
Federal allocations 204,310               204,310               39,293                 (165,017)              
Investment income -                           -                           58                        58                        

Total revenues 544,941               544,941               39,351                 (505,590)              

Expenditures:

Current:
General and administrative 168                      168                      5                          163                      
Professional services 544,773               544,773               44,335                 500,438               

Total expenditures 544,941               544,941               44,340                 500,601               

Net change in fund balance -$                         -$                         (4,989)                  (4,989)$                

Fund Balance: 

Beginning of Year 5,489                   

End of Year 500$                    

Imperial County Transportation Commission
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Regional Collaborations Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
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Variance
With Final

Budget
Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:

State allocations 170,000$             170,000$             219,306$             49,306$               
Investment income 15,000                 15,000                 14,175                 (825)                     
Other revenues -                           -                           150                      150                      

Total revenues 185,000               185,000               233,631               48,631                 

Expenditures:

Current:
General and administrative 30,100                 30,100                 31,006                 (906)                     
Professional services 85,912                 85,912                 107,647               (21,735)                

Total expenditures 116,012               116,012               138,653               (22,641)                

Net change in fund balance 68,988$               68,988$               94,978                 25,990$               

Fund Balance: 

Beginning of Year 1,479,731            

End of Year 1,574,709$          

Imperial County Transportation Commission
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - SAFE Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
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ICTC establishes accounting control through formal adoption of an annual budget for all of its funds. The Overall Work Plan and
Budget is developed by ICTC staff and Executive Director and demonstrates a comprehensive agency-wide budget that conveys the
work to be performed by the Commission. Staff has the on-going responsibility to monitor actual revenues and expenditures. When
it becomes necessary to modify the adopted budget, the amendment procedure will depend on the type of change that is needed. It is
proposed that administrative changes that do not result in an increase in the overall program budget, but require line item transfers
of costs and revenues within a work program budget, will only require approval of the Executive Director. Amendments that result
in an increase to the total expenditures for a program would require Commission approval and will be presented to the Commission
in a formal agenda item.

Imperial County Transportation Commission
Required Supplementary Information 

Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Budget and Budgetary Accounting
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Measurement Date June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

Proportion of the net pension liability 0.68200% 0.50200% 0.42200% 0.40800% 0.36600% 0.35800% 0.34100%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 937,450$      613,149$      588,681$      546,878$      491,187$      317,478$      200,453$      

Covered payroll 698,009$      715,480$      599,646$      542,755$      483,874$      452,450$      431,290$      

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 
as percentage of covered payroll 134.30% 85.70% 98.17% 100.76% 101.51% 70.17% 46.48%

Plan's proportionate share of the fiduciary net 
position as a percentage of the total pension 
liability 81.98% 87.76% 86.20% 85.31% 83.39% 88.78% 88.78%

1 Historical information is presented only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable. 

Last Ten Fiscal Years1

Imperial County Employees' Retirement System ("ICERS") Miscellaneous Plan

Imperial County Transportation Commission
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
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2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Actuarially determined contribution 152,886$    145,001$    101,098$    92,719$      85,263$      80,762$      71,167$      
Contributions in relation to the actuarially 
   determined contributions (152,886)     (145,001)     (101,098)     (92,719)       (85,263)       (80,762)       (71,167)       

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                

Covered payroll 698,009$    715,480$    599,646$    542,755$    483,874$    452,450$    431,290$    

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 21.90% 20.27% 16.86% 17.08% 17.62% 17.85% 16.50%

Notes to Schedule:

Imperial County Employees' Retirement System ("ICERS") Miscellaneous Plan

1 Historical information is presented only for measurement periods for which GASB No. 68 is available for periods after GASB 68 implementation in 2014. 
Additional years of information will be displayed as it becomes available.

Benefit Changes: There were no changes to the benefit terms.

Imperial County Transportation Commission
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Schedule of Pension Contributions
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Last Ten Fiscal Years1
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B. LOW CARBON TRANSIT OPERATIONS PROGRAM 
 (LCTOP) APPLICATION FOR FY 2021-22 FUNDS 

 

 1. AUTHORIZE THE CHAIRPERSON TO SIGN THE 
 ATTACHED RESOLUTION  

 2. AUTHORIZATION FOR EXECUTION OF THE 
 LCTOP PROJECT APPLICATION: FREE FARE 
 PROGRAM FOR ELIGIBLE ICTC ADMINISTERED 
 TRANSIT SERVICES 
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1503 N. IMPERIAL AVENUE, SUITE 104 

EL CENTRO, CA  92243-2875 

PHONE: (760) 592-4494 

FAX: (760) 592-4410 

March 4, 2022 

ICTC Management Committee  

Imperial County Transportation Commission 

1503 N. Imperial Ave., Suite 104 

El Centro, CA   92243 

SUBJECT: Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) Application for FY 2021-22 Funds 

Dear Committee Members: 

Imperial County Transportation Commission (ICTC) proposes to submit an application for use of Low 

Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) funds in Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22. The LCTOP is one of 

several programs that are part of the Transit, Affordable Housing, and Sustainable Communities Program 

established by the California Legislature in 2014 by Senate Bill 862 (SB 862).  The LCTOP was created to 

provide operating and capital assistance for transit agencies to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions and 

improve mobility, with a priority on serving disadvantaged communities. Approved projects in LCTOP will 

support the following: 

1. Expenditures that directly enhance or expand transit service by supporting new or expanded bus

or rail services, new or expanded water-borne transit, or expanded intermodal transit facilities,

and may include equipment acquisition, fueling, maintenance, and other costs to operate those

services or facilities.

2. Operational expenditures that increase transit mode share including free fare programs.

3. Expenditures related to the purchase of zero-emission buses, including electric buses, and the

installation of the necessary equipment and infrastructure to operate and support zero-emission

buses.

Per the State Controller’s Office, ICTC has an eligible allocation in FY 2021-22 in the amount of $494,974. 

Following the LCTOP guidelines, ICTC staff recommends submitting an application requesting the use of 

funds from FY 2021-22 towards a free fare program to be utilized on eligible ICTC administered 

transportation modes. 

CITIES OF BRAWLEY, CALEXICO, CALIPATRIA, EL CENTRO, HOLTVILLE, IMPERIAL, WESTMORLAND, 

IMPERIAL IRRIGATION DISTRICT AND COUNTY OF IMPERIAL 
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ICTC Management Committee     (2)            March 4, 2022 

Imperial County Transportation Commission 

 

 

  

It is requested that the ICTC Management Committee forward this item to the Commission for their review 

and approval after public comment, if any:  

 

1. Authorize the ICTC Chairperson to sign the attached resolution; 

2. Authorization for the Execution of the LCTOP Project application: Free Fare Program for eligible 

ICTC administered transit services. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
David Aguirre 

Interim Executive Director 
 

 

Attachments 
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RESOLUTION # _______ 
 

AUTHORIZATION FOR THE EXECUTION OF THE 

CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES AND AUTHORIZED AGENT FORMS 

FOR THE LOW CARBON TRANSIT OPERATIONS PROGRAM (LCTOP) 

FOR THE FOLLOWING PROJECT: 

FREE FARES PROGRAM:  

$494,974  
 

 

WHEREAS, the Imperial County Transportation Commission is an eligible project sponsor and 

may receive state funding from the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) for transit 

projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, the statutes related to state-funded transit projects require a local or regional 

implementing agency to abide by various regulations; and 

 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 862 (2014) named the Department of Transportation (Department) as the 

administrative agency for the LCTOP; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Department has developed guidelines for the purpose of administering and 

distributing LCTOP funds to eligible project sponsors (local agencies); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Imperial County Transportation Commission wishes to delegate authorization to 

execute these documents and any amendments thereto to David Aguirre, Interim Executive 

Director. 

 

WHEREAS, the Imperial County Transportation Commission wishes to implement the following 

LCTOP project(s) listed above, 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Imperial County 

Transportation Commission that the fund recipient agrees to comply with all conditions and 

requirements set forth in the Certification and Assurances and the Authorized Agent documents 

and applicable statutes, regulations and guidelines for all LCTOP funded transit projects. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that David Aguirre, Interim Executive 

Director, be authorized to execute all required documents of the LCTOP program and any 

Amendments thereto with the California Department of Transportation. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Imperial County 

Transportation Commission that it hereby authorizes the submittal of the following project 

nomination(s) and allocation request(s) to the Department in FY 2021-22 for LCTOP funds as 

follows:  
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Project Name: Free Fares Program 

Amount of LCTOP funds requested (including LCTOP Interest): $494,974 

Short description of project: Provide Free Fares to passengers across multiple services 

Benefit to a Priority Populations: The project is located within multiple SB 535 Disadvantaged 

Communities and AB 1550 Low-Income Communities 

 

 

PASSSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Imperial County Transportation    

Commission held on March 23, 2022. 

 

 

 

 

       By: ___________________________ 

              Chairman 

 

 

  

 ATTEST: 

 

 

By: 

      ___________________________ 

 

      CRISTI LERMA 

      Secretary to the Commission 
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